

THIS

# Statistical Analysis Plan (SAP)



M1095

M1095 phase 2b psoriasis study

# itation of extension of such application A phase 2b randomized, double-blind, placebo controlled, multicenter 12-week study with an additional 40-week follow-up assessment of efficacy, safety and tolerability of M1095 in subjects with moderate to severe chronic plaquetype psoriasis.

Version: Final 4.0 24-Sep-19, Effective 24-Sep-2019 Author(s): Trial Statistician SAP Documentation Document type: Final 🔊 Document status: Version 1.0, 29-Jan-2019 Release date(s): Amendment 1, version 2.0, 04-Jun-2019 Amendment 2, version 3.0, 17-Jul-2019 Amendment 3, version 4.0, 24-Sep-2019 77 Number of pages Identifying ClinicalTrials.Gov NCT03384745 Numbers: **Confidential Information** 

The information contained in this Statistical Analysis Plan (SAP) is confidential and the information contained within it may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated without the approval of Clinbay or its representatives,

# **Confidential Notice**

This document and the information in it is the property of Bond Avillion 2 Development LP and it may not, in full or in part, be disclosed, distributed, reproduced, published or otherwise used without the express permission of Bond Avillion 2 Development LP.

### **Table of Contents**

Section	Page
Table of Contents	2
List of Tables	5
List of Figures	
Abbreviations	
Revision History	10
1 Introduction	16
1.1 Scope of Document	16 si <sup>0</sup>
1.2 Study Reference Documentation	
1.3 Study Objectives	160 <sup>5</sup>
1.3.1 Primary Objective	
1.3.2 Secondary Objectives	al
1.3.3 Exploratory Objectives	17
1.4 Study Design	17
2 Interim Analyses	21
3 Analysis Populations	23
4 Statistical Methods	25
4.1 General Considerations	25
4.1.1 Imputation Methods for Missing Data	27
4.1.1.1 Complete Cases (CC)	31
4.1.1.2 Non-Responder Imputation (NRI)	31
4.1.1.3 Last-Observation Carried Forward (LOCF)	31
4.1.1.4 Multiple Imputation (MI)	31
4.1.1.5 Tipping Point Analysis	34
4.2 Efficacy	36
4.2.1 Primary Analysis	
4.2.1.1 v Variable	
4.2.1 Descriptive Analyses	
4.2.1.3 Inferential Analyses	36
4.2.1.4 Sensitivity Analyses	37
4.2.2 Secondary Analyses	38
4.2.2.1 Variables	
4.2.2.2 Descriptive and Inferential Analyses	40
4.2.3 Exploratory Analyses	41
4.2.3.1 Exploratory Analyses after Escalation at Week 12	41

4.2.3.2 Exploratory Analyses after Withholding/Restarting M1095 from Week 24	45
4.3 Quality of Life	48
4.3.1 Variables	48
4.3.2 Descriptive Analyses and Inferential Analyses	48
4.4 Subject Demographics/Other Baseline Characteristics	
4.4.1 Variables	
4.4.2 Descriptive Analyses	
4.5 Analysis Populations	
4.5.1 Variables	50 ్రో
4.5.2 Descriptive Analyses	
4.6 Subject Disposition	
4.6.1 Variables	
4.6.2 Descriptive Analyses	
4.6.3 Graphical Presentation	
4.7 Treatment Compliance	
4.7.1 Variables	52
4.7.2 Descriptive Analyses	54
4.8 Previous and Concomitant Therapy	55
4.9 Safety and Tolerability Data	
4.9.1 Variables	
4.9.2 Descriptive Analyses	
4.9.2.1 Vital Signs	59
4.9.2.2 Skin Evaluations	
4.9.2.3 ECG Evaluations.	59
4.9.2.4 Clinical Laboratory Evaluations	60
4.9.2.5 Adverse Events	61
4.9.2.6 Depression and Suicidality/Self-Injurious Behavior	63
4.9.3 Graphical Presentation	63
4.10 Pharmacokinetic (PK) Parameters	63
4.10.1 Variables	63
4.10.2 Descriptive Analyses	63
4.11 Immunogenicity Data	64
4.12 Subgroup Analyses	64
June 4.12.1 Variables	64
4.12.2 Descriptive and Inferential Analyses	65
4.12.2.1 Binary and Categorical Variables	65
4.12.2.2 Continuous Variables	65
4.12.2.3 Safety Variables	

5	S	ample Size Calculation	67
6	R	eference List	
7	A	ppendices	
	7.1	Appendix A: Scoring of DLQI	
	7.2	Appendix B: Derivation of EQ-PSO	
	7.3	Appendix C: Scoring of SF-36 (Version 2 Standard)	
	7.4	Appendix D: Scoring of PHQ-8	
	7.5	Appendix E: Derivation of eC-SSRS	
			15101
			et er
			L'OL
			indito'
			1 Joil
		A AS	
		or incom	
		COX 200	
		TED allon	
		ANOTZE	
		PEL JUNI	
		ting	
		atte	
		a h	
		A. C.	
		-NQQ	
		× 10 3°	
		15 <sup>CC</sup>	
		* ve	
		th <sup>ot</sup>	
	. <	II.S	
,	Cent		
CU			
wis de			

## List of Tables

	Table 2.1 List of assessments and timeframes analyzed for interim analyses	. 22
	Table 3.1: Definition of Analysis Populations	. 24
	Table 4.1: Randomized Planned Treatment Groups and their Labels for each Treatment Period for Primary, Secondary Efficacy Analyses and Exploratory Analyses of QoL Variables	. 25 application
	Table 4.2: Actual Treatment Groups for the Induction Period and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the Induction Period	. 26
	Table 4.3: Actual Treatment Groups for the Overall Period and their Labels for Safety         Analyses of the Overall Period.	. 26
	Table 4.4: Analysis Populations and Imputation Approaches to Handle Missing Data in Function of Efficacy Variables	. 28
	Table 4.5: Secondary Efficacy Endpoints and Variables	. 39
	Table 4.6: Exploratory Endpoints and Variables Related to Post-Week 12 Dose Escalation/Maintenance Analyses	. 42
	Table 4.7: Planned Treatment Groups with Dose Escalation and their Labels for each Treatment Period for Exploratory Analyses after Week 12.	. 43
	Table 4.8: Definition of Additional Analysis Population for Exploratory Analyses	. 45
	Table 4.9: Exploratory Endpoints and Variables Related to Post-Week 24 Dose Hold/Resta Analyses	art . 46
	Table 4.10: Planned Treatment Groups with Dose Escalation/Hold and their Labels for eac	h
	Treatment Period for Exploratory Analyses after Week 24.	. 47
	Table 4.11: Analysis Populations in Function of Demography Variables	. 50
	Table 4.12: First M1095 Dose and Calculation of Dose Hold Duration Depending on         Treatment Group	. 54
	Table 4.13: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Pooled Safety Analyses of the Overall Period.	. 57
	Table 4.14: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the         Maintenance/Escalation Period	. 58
This do	Table 4.15: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the Response Assessment/Dose Hold Period	e . 58
	Table 4.16: List of Efficacy Endpoints for Subgroup Analyses and Variables	. 64

The sound where the set of the sound of the

### **List of Figures**

	List of Figures
	Figure 1.1: Flow chart / Study Design Diagram
	Figure 4.1: Multiple Imputation Process when Imputing <i>n</i> Datasets
	alication and a second
	et all
	of sur
	xention.
	otet
	atiation
	and
	il <sup>or</sup>
	OFTOPICS
	THE ation of
	2EDAuthorit
	etings
	I maile
	otan
	Supp
	used it
	O VE
	mustri
	ment
150	
<n,< td=""><td></td></n,<>	

### Abbreviations

	ADaM	Analysis Data Model
	AE	Adverse Event
	AESI	Adverse Event of Special Interest
	ANCOVA	Analysis of Covariance
	ATC	Anatomical Therapeutic Chemical
	BMI	Body Mass Index
	BP	Blood Pressure
	BSA	Body Surface Area
	CC	Complete Cases
	СМН	Cochran-Mantel-Haenszel
	CRO	Contract Research Organization
	CSR	Clinical Study Report
	csv	Comma-separated values
	CV	Coefficient of Variation
	DAG	Data Analysis Group
	DBL	Database Lock
	DLQI	Dermatology Life Quality Index
	DMC	Data Monitoring Committee
	ECG	Electrocardiogram
	eC-SSRS	electronic Columbia-Suicide Severity Rating Scale
	EQ-5D-5L	Euro-Quality of Life-5 dimension-5 levels
	EQ-POS	Euro-Quality of Life Questionnaire for Psoriasis
	HR	Heart Rate
	IA	Interim Analysis
	IA1	First Interim analysis
	IA2	Second Interim analysis
	IGA	Investigator's Global Assessment
	IMP	Investigational Medicinal Product
	IRT	Interactive Response Technology
	ITT	Intent to Treat
	LLOQ	Lower Limit Of Quantification
	LOCF	Last Observation Carried Forward
	LOQ	Limit Of Quantification
	LS	Least-Squares
	LSM	Least-Squares Means
	MAR	Missing At Random
	MCMC	Markov Chain Monte Carlo
	MCS	Mental Component Summary
	MedDRA	Medical Dictionary for Regulatory Activities
	MI	Multiple Imputation
	MITT12	Modified Intent to Treat up to Week 12
	MITT24	Modified Intent to Treat up to Week 24
	MI4148	Modified Intent to Treat up to Week 48
. (	A%A	Not Applicable
. 600	NRI OD	Non-Responder Imputation
1/1/2	UK	Udds Katio
	PASI	Psoriasis Area and Severity Index
	PCS	Physical Component Summary
	PHQ-8	Personal Health Questionnaire-8
	РК	Pharmacokinetics

	PP	Per Protocol
	PP12	Per Protocol up to Week 12
	PP24	Per Protocol up to Week 24
	PP48	Per Protocol up to Week 48
	PRO	Patient Reported Outcomes
	PT	Preferred Term
	O2W	Every 2 weeks
	04	Every 4 weeks
	04W	Every 4 weeks
	Q8	Every 8 weeks
	Q8W	Every 8 weeks
	QC	Quality Control
	QoL	Quality of Life
	SAE	Serious Adverse Event
	SAP	Statistical Analysis Plan
	SD	Standard Deviation
	SDTM	Study Data Tabulation Model
	SE	Standard Error
	SF-36	Short-Form 36
	SI	International System of Units
	SoA	Schedule of Activities
	SOC	System Organ Class
	TEAE	Treatment-Emergent Adverse Event
	TFL	Tables, Figures, Listings
	TPA	Tipping Point Analysis
	VAS	Visual Analog Scale
	WHO	World Health Organization
	WHO-DD	World Health Organization Drug Dictionary
	wk	week
		CDr MO.
		$\langle \Sigma_{\mathbf{x}} \rangle \rangle$
		enix
		NO.
		and the second se
		a)
		cull <sup>e</sup>
		×0 <sup>3</sup>
		est and the second s
		VSC
	ر» ر	
	NOT	
	S	
	, Mr	
	ent	
	Inc	
	2000	
.0		

# **Revision History**

### Document History – Changes compared to previous final version of SAP

Date	Time point	Reason for update	Section title impacted (Current number): Outline of change
29-JAN-19	Prior to unblinding at Week 12 (first Interim	Creation of initial version	NA
	Analysis)		
17-MAY-19	Prior to unblinding at Week 12 (first Interim Analysis)	The SAP was amended to clarify/modify some analyses.	<ul> <li>Section 1.3.2 Secondary Objectives: Clarification of the key secondary objectives for consistency purposes with the protocol.</li> <li>Section 1.4 Study Design: Clarification of treatment groups in the response assessment/dose hold period.</li> </ul>
			Section 2 Interim Analyses (Table 2.1):
			<ul> <li>Clarification of data presented for each interim analysis (IA).</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>Clarification of DMC meetings occurring before IA1.</li> </ul>
			THE HOR
			Section 3 Analysis Populations: Clarification of the period for the three per protocol populations.
		e iii	Section 4.1 General Considerations (Table 4.2 and Table 4.3):
		anyman	<ul> <li>Clarification of derivation of actual treatments for the safety analyses of the induction and overall periods.</li> </ul>
	SU	2Port	Clarification of reporting of efficacy and QOL data.
	sed to		Section 4.1.1 Imputation Methods for Missing Data:
~	10the U.S.		• <b>Table 4.4</b> : Clarification of the timeframe for each IA and of the variables and changes in the planned analyses for these IA.
ent must			<ul> <li>Clarification of the use of stratifications factors as assigned at randomization (in IRT) in the efficacy analyses.</li> </ul>
cun.			Clarification of the definition of missing data.
,			Section 4.1.1.3 Last-Observation Carried Forward

Date	Time point	Reason for update	Section title impacted (Current number): Outline of change
			<b>Section 4.1.1.5.1 Imputation Phase</b> : Clarification regarding the fact that the response probabilities specified in this section are provided to explain the methodology.
			Section 4.2 Efficacy: Clarification of using the stratifications factors as assigned at randomization (in IRT)
			Section 4.2.1.3 Inferential Analyses: Clarification of using the stratifications factors as assigned at randomization (in IRT) in the analyses.
			Section 4.2.1.4 Sensitivity Analyses: Clarification that sensitivity analyses are optional.
			Section 4.2.2.1 Variables (Table 4.5): Clarification of endpoints and their type
			Section 4.2.2.2 Descriptive and Inferential Analyses: Addition of a sensitivity analysis because the subgroup analysis per actual stratification factors cannot serve as sensitivity analysis in case of stratification errors.
		¢ Jo	Clarification of the time to be used if median time is not estimable.
		oftanyman	<b>Section 4.2.3 Exploratory Analyses:</b> Clarification regarding the fact that sensitivity analyses of the exploratory analyses may not be performed.
	,0 <sup>1051</sup>	<i>82</i>	Section 4.2.3.1.1 Variables (Table 4.6): Clarification of type of variables.
Children and Chi	st not be use		<b>Section 4.2.3.1.2 Descriptive Analyses (Table 4.7):</b> Clarification of the descriptive comparisons and of the displayed treatments for exploratory analyses after Week 12.
Jument			<b>Section 4.2.3.1.5 Time-to-event Variables:</b> Clarification of the time to be used if median time is not estimable.
			<b>Section 4.2.3.1.6 Subset Analyses:</b> Clarification of the reasons to use the MITT48 population for exploratory analyses after Week 12.

Date	Time point	Reason for update	Section title impacted (Current number): Outline of change
			Section 4.2.3.2.1 Variables (Table 4.9): Clarification of type of variables.
			Section 4.2.3.2.2 Descriptive Analyses:
			<ul> <li>Clarification of the analysis population for the exploratory analyses after Week 24.</li> </ul>
			• <b>Table 4.10</b> : Clarification of the treatments presented in the exploratory analyses after Week 24.
			<ul> <li>Table 4.15: Clarification of treatment labels for M1095 120mg.</li> </ul>
			Section 4.3.2: Descriptive Analyses and Inferential Analyses: Clarification of the use of stratifications factors as assigned at randomization (in IRT) in the analyses of quality of life data.
			Section 4.4.1 Variables:
			<ul> <li>Clarification of the variables and/or visits to be presented in the table of demographics and other baseline characteristics</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>Charification of the analysis populations for the laboratory assessments.</li> </ul>
		2	Section 4.5.1 Variables: Correction of the analysis populations to be presented in the disposition table.
		nattet	Section 4.7: Treatment Compliance: Clarification of the definition of subject-years.
		oport any L	Section 4.8: Previous and Concomitant Therapy: Change in the analysis population.
	105	)X	Section 4.9 Safety and Tolerability Data:
	Used		• Table 4.13, Table 4.14 and Table 4.15: Clarification of derivation of actual treatments.
	st not be		• <b>Table 4.15</b> : Clarification of treatment labels for M1095 120mg.
at mil	50		Section 4.9.2.5 Adverse Events:
inel.			Clarification of TEAEs per treatment period.
2.			Change of wording for actual treatments.
			<ul> <li>Clarification that only serious TEAEs will be presented in summary tables and that incidence tables by PT will not be produced.</li> </ul>
			The identification of common TEAEs were

Date	Time point	Reason for update	Section title impacted (Current number): Outline of change
			Section 4.10 Pharmacokinetic (PK) Parameters:
			<ul> <li>Clarification regarding the fact that the PK analyses may be reported in a separate report.</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>Clarification of treatment groups to be used for PK analyses.</li> </ul>
			Section 4.12 Subgroup Analyses:
			<ul> <li>Clarification of using the actual stratifications factors in the subgroup analyses.</li> </ul>
			• Clarifications that the subgroup analyses can be used as sensitivity analyses only if there were no stratifications errors.
			Section 4.12.1 Variables (Table 4.96): Clarifications of type of variables.
			Editorial and administrative changes have been made throughout the document.
17-JUL-19	Prior to unblinding at Week 12 (first Interim Analysis)	The SAP was amended to clarify/modify some analyses.	Section 2 Interim Analyses (Table 2.1): Clarification of analyses to be performed at Interim Analyses 1 and/or 2. Section 3 Analysis Populations: Adding a reference to a supplement to the SAP.
		, dill	Section 4.1.1 Imputation Methods for Missing Data
		N Mark	Table 4.4: Clarification of analyses to be     performed at Interim Analysis 2
	used to su	pport arry	<ul> <li>Change of the factors to be used for the efficacy analyses: use of weight category and prior use of biologic therapy stratum derived from the observed values rather than the stratum as assigned at randomization.</li> </ul>
At MUST	nother		<b>Section 4.2 Efficacy</b> : Use of the actual stratification factors for all efficacy analyses using a CMH test or an ANCOVA and for the descriptive analyses presenting the stratification factors.
Jumel			Section 4.2.1.4.1 Sensitivity Analysis to Stratification Factors: Addition of a sensitivity analysis of the primary endpoint using the randomized stratum in case of a large number of stratification errors.
			Section 4.2.1.1 Variables: Clarification of the IGA categories for the shift analysis.

Date	Time point	Reason for update	Section title impacted (Current number): Outline of change
			Section 4.2.1.4.3 Sensitivity Analyses to Missing Data: Clarification of how the extent of missing IGA data will be summarized.
			Section 4.2.2.2.1 Binary and Categorical Variables:
			<ul> <li>Addition of a sensitivity analysis of the key secondary endpoints in case of a large number of stratification errors.</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>Removal of the assessment of the homogeneity assumption because this assessment is covered by the subgroup analyses.</li> </ul>
			<ul> <li>Removal of the pairwise comparisons for the shift analyses to keep all possible shift categories.</li> </ul>
			Section 4.2.3.1.1 Variables and Section 4.2.3.2.1 Variables: Clarification of the IGA categories for the shift analysis.
			Section 4.3 Quality of Life: Use of the actual stratification factors for all analyses using an ANCOVA.
			Section 4.9.2.1 Vital Signs: Clarifications of the way to identify vital signs abnormalities.
		Ptroit	Section 4.12 Subgroup Analyses: Clarification of the subgroup analyses that can be used for sensitivity analyses due to the change of efficacy analyses.
		port any n'	Editorial and administrative changes have been made throughout the document.
24-SEP-19	Prior to	The SAP was	Section 2 Interim Analyses:
	unblinding of study statistician, programmers	amended to clarify some points.	<ul> <li>Clarification of tasks to be performed for each designated role (study statistician, statistical programmers and designated sponsor team members).</li> </ul>
ocumentmust	designated sponsor team members at Week 24 (second		• Table 2.1: Clarification that shift analysis from baseline in IGA (secondary endpoint) as well as PK and immunogenicity analyses (exploratory endpoint) will not be reported after Week 24 for Interim Analysis 2.
>	Interim Analysis)		Section 4.1.1 Imputation Methods for Missing Data (Table 4.4):
			<ul> <li>Correction of the imputation method of the secondary analysis of PASI responses and IGA score of 0 or 1 from Week 24 in the MITT48</li> </ul>

Date Time po	int Reason for update	Section title impacted (Current number): Outline of change
		population.
		<ul> <li>Completion of the imputation method when there was a change in the population but not in the analysis period (exploratory (escalation): IGA score of 0 or 1, IGA score of 0, PASI responses from Week 12 to Week 24 and exploratory (escalation): shift from Week 12 in IGA score category from Week 12 to Week 24),</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Removal of the reporting of the shift from baseline in IGA imputed with LOCF from Week 24 to Week 52 for Interim Analysis 2.</li> </ul>
		Section 4.2.2.2.1 Binary and Categorical Variables: Correction of the presented visits for the categorical analyses displaying the shift from baseline in IGA score category to be consistent with Table 4.5.
		Section 4.9.1 Variables: Clarification of the data presented in the section.
		Section 4.12 Subgroup Analyses: Clarification of the subgroups of IGA at baseline.
		Editorial and administrative changes have been made throughout the document.
	Wmatket	ing autre
otheused	to support all'	
mentmust		

#### Introduction 1

## 1.1 Scope of Document

 Incrementation of the planned statistical phase 2b randomized, double-blind, placebo controlled, multicenter 12-week study with an additional 40-week follow-up assessment of efficacy, safety and tolerability of M1095 in subjects with moderate to severe chronic plaque-type psoriasis.
 **1.2 Study Reference Documentation**Final study protocol (Version 3.0, incorporating CZE-1, dated 16<sup>th</sup> October 2018) is available at the time of finalization of the SAP.
 **1.3 Study Objectives 1.3 Study Objectives 1.3.1 Primary Objective Type of Objective Study Objective Study Objective**
The Statistical Analysis Plan (SAP) describes the implementation of the planned statistical

Type of Objective	Study Objective
Primary Objective	• To evaluate the efficacy of four dose regimens of M1095 compared to placebo on achievement of an Investigator's Global Assessment (IGA) score of 0 or 1 after 12 weeks of treatment in subjects with moderate to severe chronic plaque- type psoriasis.

# 1.3.2 Secondary Objectives

	Type of Objective	Study Objective
	Key Secondary Objectives	• To evaluate the efficacy of four dose regimens of M1095 compared to placebo during a 12-week treatment period on secondary endpoints: Psoriasis Area and Severity Index (PASI) 75, PASI 90, PASI 100, change in PASI and shift in IGA.
	Secondary Objectives	• To assess the dose-regimen efficacy relationship for M1095 after 12, 24, 36 and 48 weeks of treatment.
This de		• To evaluate the longer-term efficacy of M1095 at Week 24 and at Weeks 36 and 48.
		• To assess the safety and tolerability of M1095.

# 1.3.3 Exploratory Objectives

Type of Objective	Study Objective				
Exploratory Objectives	• Assessment of the quality of life and health outcomes of subjects treated with M1095 over 48 weeks via quality of life instruments evaluated every 12 weeks.				
	• Assessment of the population pharmacokinetics (PK) of various doses and dose regimens of M1095.				
	• Assessment of the development of antidrug antibodies for various doses and dose regimens of M1095.				
	• Assessment of change in efficacy from Week 12 to Week 24 in subjects who undergo dose escalation.				
	• Assessment of M1095 being withheld in subjects with an IGA score of 0 at Week 24.				

**1.4 Study Design**This is a multi-center, randomized phase 2b study in subjects with moderate to severe chronic plaque-type psoriasis. Approximately 300 subjects will be enrolled at approximately 60 investigator sites in North America and Europe

At the end of the initial 4-week screening period (Week -4 to Week 0), all eligible subjects will be randomized within strata of prior biologic use (yes/no) and weight ( $\leq 90 \text{ kg} > 90 \text{ kg}$ ) in a 1:1:1:1:1:1 ratio with approximately 50 subjects randomized into each of six treatment groups as shown below and in Figure 1.4.

- 1. Placebo at weeks 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 10 / M1095 120mg at weeks 12, 14, 16 and Q4W.
- 2. M1095 (30 mg) at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12 and Q4W.
- M1095 (60 mg) at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12 and Q4W.
   M1095 (120 mg) at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12 and Q8W.
- 5. M1095 (120 mg) at weeks 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12 and Q4W.
- 6. Secukmumab (300 mg) at weeks 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 12 and Q4W.

After randomization at Week 0, the study will consist of: This document r

3 consecutive treatment periods:

- A: Induction: a 12-week treatment period (Week 0 to Week 12), which is placebo-controlled,
- B: Maintenance/escalation: a 12-week maintenance/escalation period (Week 12 to Week 24) where all subjects are on active treatment,

- C: Response assessment/dose hold: a 24 week response assessment/dose hold period (Week 24 to Week 48) where active treatment is withheld in subjects who have been administered M1095 during the maintenance period and have an IGA score of 0 at the start of this period i.e. at Week 24,
- followed by a final assessment period (Week 48 to Week 52) for safety/efficacy follow-up.

The study will be double-blinded, subject- and investigator- blinded, during all treatment periods up to Week 52 (refer to the unblinding plan for further information about the timepoints when specific teams will be unblinded during the study). Blinding will be maintained prior to Week 52 using masking techniques. Therefore, up to Week 24, subjects randomized to 30 and 60 mg M1095 (Arms 2 and 3) will be administered placebo at Weeks 1, 3, 6, 10 and 14 in order to preserve the blinding. Similarly, subjects randomized to 120 mg M1095 (Arm 4) will receive placebo at Weeks 1, 3, 6, 10, 14 and 16 and subjects randomized to 120 mg M1095 (Arm 5) will receive placebo at Weeks 1, 3 and 14. Subjects randomized to Secukinumab (Arm 6) will receive placebo at Weeks 6, 10 and 14.

At the end of the treatment induction period (Week 12), the subjects randomized to 30 mg or 60 mg M1095 who do not achieve an IGA score of 0 or 1 will be dose-escalated to 120 mg Q4W at Week 12.

Subjects who enter the maintenance/escalation period will receive one of the following treatments until Week 24 and before the dose injection at Week 24:

- Placebo at weeks 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 10 and M1095 120 mg at weeks 12, 14, 16 and Q4W.
- M1095 30 mg at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12 and Q4W
  M1095 60 mg at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12 and Q4W
- M1095 30 mg at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8 and M1095 120 mg at week 12 and Q4W if IGA Week12 > 1
- M1095 60 mg at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8 and M1095 120 mg at week 12 and Q4W
- M1095 120 mg at weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12 and Q8W
- M1095 20 mg at weeks 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12 and Q4W
- Secukinumab 300 mg at weeks 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 12 and Q4W.

At the end of the maintenance/escalation period (Week 24), any subjects on M1095 treatment groups who did not undergo dose escalation at Week 12 and achieve an IGA score of 0 at Week 24 will have the study treatment withheld. To maintain the blinding after Week 24, these subjects will receive placebo Q4W. Subjects receiving secukinumab in the first treatment period will continue to receive it at the same dose 300 mg Q4W throughout the study.

Subjects who enter the response assessment/dose hold period will receive one of the following treatments until Week 44 (or until when the IGA score of subjects with M1095

treatment held at Week 24 subsequently increases to 1 or more\* at which time these subjects will be re-administered the study treatment M1095 at the dose they received prior to Week 24):



\*If the IGA score of these subjects subsequently increases to 1 or more at any time after Week 24, these subjects will be re-administered the study treatment M1095 at the dose they received prior to Week 24 on a Q4W regimen at the scheduled visits as per protocol until the end of the treatment period. Dose will not be withheld for a second time, irrespective of subsequent IGA scores.

THIS



Exposure to Placebo will be limited to a maximum of 12 weeks during the induction period and a maximum of 20 weeks after Week 24 (i.e. during the response assessment/dose hold period) provided that the subjects maintain a complete remission (i.e. achieving an IGA = 0).

All subjects, irrespective of whether they completed or discontinued the study, will be followed up for safety and potential sustainability of efficacy, for an additional 8 weeks (56 days) after receiving the last dose of study treatment. In addition, subjects who discontinued prior to Week 52 will be contacted monthly as per the study schedule (up to Week 52) to This document must not be used to su report any AEs, concomitant medications and any new psoriasis treatments.

#### 2 **Interim Analyses**

Two Interim Analyses (IAs) are planned during this trial:

- 1. IA1: the first unblinded IA of complete 12-week data for all randomized subjects will

The purpose of both interim analyses is to closely monitor the safety and tolerability data throughout the study. The study will not be terminated early on the basis of either positive efficacy or futility after the review of the first or the second interim analyses are also conducted to gather prelimination.

The first unblinded IA will be managed by an independent Data Monitoring Committee (DMC) and an independent Data Analysis Group (DAG) to preserve the blinding. This data will be shared with firewalled individuals who are not directly involved in the conduct of the study. The DMC will be operational prior to enrolment of the first subject into the study. The composition and operation of the DMC will be described in a DMC charter. The charter will also detail how the communication between the DMC and the sponsor will be firewalled to preserve the blinding and integrity of the study. The analyses that will be included in the first interim analysis are described in Table 2.1 (refer to the corresponding sections of this SAP for further information about the analyses and to Table 4.4 for the imputation methods to be used for each assessment of this planned interim analysis). Unblinded results of IA1 will be 2FD'aut reviewed by the DMC members.

The DMC members will meet regularly to review blinded safety data and may decide to carry out additional unblinded safety review, as necessary. In addition, the DMC members will hold two DMC meetings with review of unblinded safety data before IA1.

Laboratory personnel performing the bioanalytical PK sample analysis may receive an open randomization list to enable analysis of relevant samples prior to IA2. In addition, a PK analyst and modelling/simulation scientist may receive an open randomization list to enable preparation of modelling/simulation activities. These individuals will not interact with site or CRO personnel, who is blinded.

For the second unblinded IA, all investigators and subjects will remain blinded to treatment assignments. Once the second interim database lock has occurred after the last subject completed the visit at Week 24 or early discontinued before Week 24 and all data up to Week 24 are cleaned, the study statistician, statistical programmers and designated sponsor team members will be unblinded to perform and/or review analysis of key study endpoints (please refer to the unblinding plan for further details). All sponsor or CRO personnel in direct contact with study sites will remain blinded and be firewalled to prevent accidental unblinding. The second interim analysis will consist of all planned analyses described in Table 2.1. It will present data for all subjects up to Week 24 (Visit 13) that is the minimum analysis cutoff visit for interim 2 and data beyond Week 24 (please refer to Table 4.4 for

further details about the imputation methods). The exact cut-off date for IA2 will be specified at a later stage before unblinding.

		Time		
Purpose	Assessment	Interim 1	Interim 2 <sup>a</sup>	
	Subject demographics and other baseline	Screening/	Screening/	alle
	characteristics	Baseline	Baseline	ophic
Subject	Analysis populations and/or subject disposition	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	ж.
Status	Medical history, previous and concomitant medications	N/A	> Week 24 )	
	Treatment compliance and/or treatment exposure	Up to Week 12	Up to Week 24	
	Protocol deviations	Up to Week 12	Up to Week 24	
	IGA response: proportion of subjects achieving an IGA score of 0, 1 with an IGA reduction of at least 2 points from baseline (primary endpoint at Week 12)	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
	Proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
Efficacy	Shift analysis from baseline in IGA	Up to Week 12	Up to Week 24	
_	Time to first IGA response	N/A	> Week 24	
	Absolute change and percent change from baseline in PASI	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
	Absolute change from baseline in percentage of total BSA affected by psoriasis	N/A	> Week 24	
	Subgroup analyses	N/A	Up to Week 24	
Evoloratory	Exploratory analyses after Week 12	N/A	> Week 24	
Applycas	Exploratory analyses after Week 24	N/A	> Week 24	
Anaryses	Analyses of Quality of Life (QOL) data	N/A	Up to Week 24	
PK Analyses	PK and immunogenicity analyses	N/A	Up to Week 24	
	Absolute change from baseline in vital signs and/or vital signs abnormalities and absolute change from baseline in ECG and/or ECG abnormalities.	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
Safety and Tolerability	Clinically laboratory abnormalities	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
	Adverse events (TEAE, serious TEAE, AESI)	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
	Mortality and suicidality and self-injurious Dehavior	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Subgroup analyses	N/A	Up to Week 24	
t MUST	Any other safety data that may deemed required at the time of IA1/IA2	Up to Week 12	> Week 24	

T-LL 0 4 T 1 4 - C	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1 10	1 4 - 1 <b>1</b>
I ADIE Z. I LIST OT ASS	sessments and timet	rames analyzed for	'inferim analyses
I HOIC DI LINCOI HOL		I MILLOS MILLING LOG IOI	

\* For IA2, the data presented will be all data up to a cutoff date, which is beyond Week 24 (Visit 13) for the last oubject unless specified otherwise. This list of planned analyses for IA2 will be confirmed before unblinding at Week 24.

Information that may unblind the study during the interim analyses must not be reported to study sites or any blinded teams as per the separate unblinding plan until the study has been unblinded.

# **3** Analysis Populations

For purposes of analysis, the followi	ng populations are defined:
---------------------------------------	-----------------------------

Population	Description	
Enrolled	All subjects who sign informed consent.	
Intent-to-Treat	The Intent-to-Treat (ITT) population includes all subjects randomly allocated to a treatment.	applicati
(ITT)	Subjects will be analyzed according to planned treatment in the induction period (up to Week 12).	uch
	The Modified Intent-to-Treat up to Week 12 (MITT12) population includes all subjects in the ITT population who receive at least one injection, have a baseline, and at least one post-baseline efficacy assessments up to Week 12. Two additional MITT populations will be defined for exploratory analyses after Week 12 and after Week 24:	
Modified Intent	• MITT24 that includes all MITT12 subjects who received at least one injection during the escalation/maintenance period from Week 12 to Week 24,	
<b>To-Treat (MITT)</b> including MITT12, MITT24 and MITT48	• MITT48 that includes at MITT12 subjects who received at least one injection during the response assessment/dose hold period from Week 24 to Week 48.	
	Subjects will be analyzed according to planned treatment:	
	• in the induction period (up to Week 12) for MITT12,	
	• in the maintenance/escalation period (from Week 12 to Week 24) for MITT24,	
	• in the response assessment/response hold period (from Week 24 to Week 48) for MITT48.	
ust not be used	The Per-Protocol (PP) population includes all subjects in the MITT population who have no important clinical protocol deviations affecting the assessment of efficacy. Three PP populations will be defined:	
<b>Per-Protocol (PP)</b> including PP12,	<ul> <li>PP12 population: PP population up to Week 12 including subjects in the MITT12 population</li> </ul>	
PP24 and PP48	<ul> <li>PP24 population: PP population up to Week 24 including subjects in the MITT24 population</li> </ul>	
	• PP48 population: PP population up to Week 48 including subjects in the MITT48 population.	

Population	Description	
	The PP populations up to Week 12 and Week 24 will be defined during the blinded data review meeting prior to unblinding at Weeks 12 and 24 respectively. Membership of the PP population after Week 24 will be determined based on new protocol deviations occurring after Week 24.	
<b>Per-Protocol (PP)</b> including PP12, PP24 and PP48	<ul> <li>Subjects will be analyzed according to planned treatment:</li> <li>in the induction period (up to Week 12) for PP12,</li> </ul>	such appli
	<ul> <li>in the maintenance/escalation period (from Week 12 to Week 24) for PP24,</li> <li>in the response assessment/response hold period (from Week 24 to Week 48) for PP48.</li> </ul>	
Safety	The Safety population includes all subjects who receive at least one dose of study treatment. The Safety population will be analyzed per the actual treatment received using a conservative approach that will be described further in Section 4.1.	
Pharmacokinetic (PK)	ic The Pharmacokinetic (PK) population includes all subjects who receive at least one dose of M1095 with valid (i.e. not flagged for exclusion) PK data and with no occurrence of important protocol deviation impacting the PK results during the study. The PK population will be analyzed per the actual treatment received.	

 Table 3.1: Definition of Analysis Populations

The primary population for efficacy data will be the ITT population. The primary analysis will be repeated on the MITT12 and PP12 analysis populations.

Safety data will be analyzed using the Safety population and PK data using the PK population.

All protocol deviations (PDs) will be tracked and their categorization will be reviewed and evaluated during the blinded data review meetings. Important PDs are defined as deviations from the protocol that are likely to have an impact on the subject's rights, safety, well-being, and/or on the validity of the data for analysis. However, only selected clinically important PDs affecting the assessment of efficacy will be excluded from statistical analyses in the PP populations (refer to the supplement to the SAP: Protocol Deviations Exclusion List).

The PP12 and PP24 populations and the PK population will be finalized during the blinded data review meetings.

The precise list of important PDs will be documented and approved at Weeks 12 and 24 before unblinding and at Week 48.

THIE

# 4 Statistical Methods

### 4.1 General Considerations

Treatment groups (and their labels to be displayed in Tables, Figures, Listings) are defined as follows:

Jon application for all primary and secondary efficacy analyses and analyses of QoL variables unless • otherwise indicated:



This document must not be used to suppr Primary, Secondary Efficacy Analyses and Exploratory Analyses of QoL Variables. • for all safety analyses unless otherwise indicated:

# Table 4.2: Actual Treatment Groups for the Induction Period and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the Induction Period

	Treatment Label	
	Induction Period	
Actual Treatment Group <sup>a</sup>	(Week 0-12)	dic
(1) - Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8	Placebo	2.QX
(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8	Secukinumab	•
(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8	30mg (x4), Q4 🔬 🕉	
(3) - M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8	60mg (x4), Q4	
(4) - M1095 120 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8	120mg (x4), Q&	
(5) - M1095 120 mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10	120mg (x6), @4	
	Total M1095b	

a: Subjects will be assigned to a treatment group based on the actual treatment they received most during the induction period.

b: Total M1095 will include the subjects who receive M1095 treatment during the induction period i.e. (2), (3), (4) and (5).

# لم Table 4.3: Actual Treatment Groups for the Overall Period and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the Overall Period

COK 300.	Treatment Label
CTED allon	Overall Period
Actual Treatment Group <sup>a</sup>	(Week 0-52)
(1) - Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8	Plac/120mg (x4), Q4b
(and M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16 and Q4W)	
(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 (and 12 and Q4W)	Secukinumab
(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8	20
(2a) and Q4W if no escalation at Week 12	30mg (x4), Q4
(2b) and M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12	
(3) – M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8	(0
(3a) and Q4W if no escalation at Week 12	60mg (x4), Q4
(3b) and M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12	
(4) - M1095 120 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and 12 and Q8W)	120mg (x4), Q8
(5) - M1095 120mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10 (and 12 and Q4W)	120mg (x6), Q4
, v <sup>e</sup>	Total M1095c

a: Subjects will be assigned to a treatment group based on the actual treatment they received most during the overall period for all treatment groups except for (1), (2b) and (3b). Regarding (2b) and (3b), subjects will be assigned to a treatment group based on the actual treatment they received most during the induction period.

D: Plac/120 mg (x4), Q4 include all subjects who were mostly administered M1095 120 mg from Week 12 to Week 44 having received placebo during the induction period. The data will only be presented from Week 12 onwards for this treatment group.

c: Total M1095 will include all subjects who received M1095 at any time during the study i.e. (1), (2), (3), (4) and (5).

All pairwise treatment comparisons will be two-sided at the 5% level, without adjustment for multiplicity unless otherwise specified.

All primary/secondary efficacy and exploratory QoL endpoints will be presented in tables including visits from Week 0 to Week 52 as follows: 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12, // 14, 16, 20, 24, // 28, 32, 36, 40, 44, 48 and 52 (each week number, written in bold, indicates the weeks, at which the pairwise treatment comparisons will be made and // indicates the boundary for the study periods). In regard to interim analyses, only visits up to Week 12 will be included for IA1. IA2 will include data up to Week 24 for all subjects and beyond Week 24 for some subjects depending on the cut-off date (see Section 2). The analyses may be split by period or by combined periods depending on the tables produced for IA1 and IA2.

For all efficacy and quality of life analyses unless specified otherwise, baseline will be approximately defined as the last non-missing assessment prior to the first dose of study medication (planned at Week 0).

For safety analyses, baseline will be defined differently according to the treatment period:

- Induction period: baseline will be defined as the last non-missing assessment prior to the first dose of study medication (planned at Week 0).
- Maintenance/Escalation period, Response Assessment/Dose Hold period and Overall study (all combined periods): baseline will be defined as the last non-missing assessment prior to the first dose of study medication (planned at Week 0) for all subjects randomized to M1095 or Secukinumab. For the subjects randomized to placebo, baseline will be the last non-missing assessment prior to the first dose of M1095 (planned at Week 12).

Unless otherwise stated, continuous data will be summarized by treatment group at each scheduled visit (including baseline) using the following summary statistics: number of nonmissing observations (n), arithmetic mean, standard deviation, median, minimum and maximum. In general, summary plots over time will present means and standard errors. The number of decimal places for these statistics will be determined by the number of decimal places of the raw data or derived data where applicable: minimum and maximum will be presented with the same number of decimal places as for the raw data, mean and median with an additional decimal place and the standard deviation and/or standard error with two additional decimal places compared to the raw data.

Categorical data will be summarized in terms of the number of non-missing observations in the analysis population, frequency counts and percentages. Percentages will be displayed with one decimal place.

All statistical analyses will be performed using SAS v9.4 or higher.

# 4.1.1 Amputation Methods for Missing Data

Intercurrent events, inducing missing assessments, may occur during the course of the study for various reasons such as:

- treatment discontinuation due to an adverse event or a lack of efficacy,
- treatment discontinuation due to subject noncompliance (protocol deviations, missing two consecutive visits).

THIS

The potential impact of missing data due to missing a visit, treatment/study discontinuation or loss-to-follow-up on the trial conclusions may be evaluated with several approaches based on different plausible assumptions that account for the uncertainty due to this unobservable data.

These approaches will be Non-Responder Imputation (NRI), Last Observation Carried Forward (LOCF), Multiple Imputation (MI) and Tipping Point Analysis (TPA).

The sensitivity analyses for the efficacy endpoints (using the approaches below) that are not applied in Table 4.4 will only be performed if the extent of missing data is greater it. Note that are imputed in the study treat. The methods to handle missing efficacy variables are summarized in Table 4.4.

#### Table 4.4: Analysis Populations and Imputation Approaches to Handle Missing Data in Function of ariati **Efficacy Variables**

	Type of	Variables	Period	Analysis	Imputation	IA1	IA2*	Final
	Variables		(Week –	Population	<b>See Section</b>			
			Week)	0	4.1.1)			
	Binary	Primary: IGA score of 0 or 1 at	0-12	ITT in the state of the state o	NRI	•		•
		Week 12		A iicai	None (CC)			(•)
			- (	K Q	LOCF	•		•
			G	NOX OX	TPA			(•)
			XX	0,	MI			(•)
			C X	MITT12	NRI	•		•
			R. NOI.	PP12	NRI	•		•
		Secondary: PASI responses	0-12	ITT	NRI	٠		•
			5		None (CC)			(•)
		C <sup>th</sup>			MI			(•)
		alt		MITT12	NRI	•		•
		1 Mil		PP12	NRI	٠		•
		Secondary: PASI responses and	12-24	ITT	NRI		•	•
		IGA score of 0 or after Week			None (CC)			(•)
		12			LOCF		•	•
		SUI			(IGA only)			
		XO		MITT24	NRI		•	•
		Sec		PP24	NRI		•	•
			24-52	ITT	NRI			•
					None (CC)		•+	(•)
	, ( <sup>1</sup>				LOCF			•
	wist				(IGA only)			
	t Mi			MITT48	NRI			•
	ent			PP48	NRI			•
	UU.	Exploratory: Achievement DLQI	0-24	ITT	NRI		•	•
20		of 0 or 1						
is								
$\langle \cdot \rangle$ .								
			24-48	ITT	NRI			•

Type of Variables	Variables	Period (Week – Week)	Analysis Population	Imputation (See Section	IA1	IA2*	Final	
Binary	Exploratory (escalation): IGA score of 0 or 1, IGA score of 0, PASI responses	12-24	MITT24 & subjects who escalated due	NRI		•	•	
			Week 12 IGA non- responder	NRI			(•)	- OII
		12-52	MITT48 & subjects who escalated due to $IGA > 1$	NRI			st such	<u>8</u> 97
	Exploratory (dose hold): IGA score of 0 or 1, IGA score of 0, PASI responses, PASI responses during the M1095 dose hold interval, PASI responses after M1095 restart	24-52	MITT48 & subjects who are eligible to dose hold	None (CC)	oretie	Cia Ci	•	
Categorical	Secondary: Shift from baseline in IGA score category	0-12	ITT	LOCF	•		•	
		12-24	ITT	LOCF		•	٠	
	Euplanatary (accelation): Shift	24-52	MITTAN	LOCF			•	-
	from Week 12 in IGA score category	12-24	subjects who escalated due to IGA > 1	LOCF		•	•	
		A norizati	Week 12 IGA non- responder	LOCF			(•)	
	RELINC	<sub>≫</sub> ¥2-52	MITT48 & subjects who escalated due to IGA > 1	LOCF			•	
	Exploratory (dose hold): Shift from Week 24 in IGA score category	24-52	MITT48 & subjects who are eligible to dose hold	None (CC)			•	
Time-to- event	Secondary: Time to first IGA/complete IGA response from baseline	0-52	ITT	None		•+	•	
24	Exploratory (escalation): Time to first IGA/complete IGA response from Week 12	12-52	MITT24 & subjects who escalated due to IGA > 1	None		•+	•	
unentmust	Exploratory (dose hold): Time to first IGA $\geq$ 1 from Week 24, time to first complete IGA response from M1095 restart	24-52	MITT48 & subjects who are eligible to dose hold	None		•+	•	

Type of Variables	Variables	Period (Week –	Analysis Population	Imputation (See Section	IA1	IA2*	Final	
		Week)		4.1.1)				
Continuous	Secondary: change and percent	0-12	ITT	LOCF	٠		•	1
	change from baseline in PASI			None (CC)			(•)	1
	_			MI			(•)	1
		12-24	ITT	LOCF		•	é	
				None (CC)			(•)	il <sup>Ol</sup>
		24-52	ITT	LOCF			•	il Cor
				None (CC)		•+	(•)	00
	Secondary: Absolute change	0-12	ITT	LOCF		•	•>>>	0.\
	from baseline in percentage of			None (CC)				1
	total BSA affected by plaque-	12-24	ITT	LOCF		• (	•	1
	type psoriasis			None (CC)		70,	(•)	1
		24-52	ITT	LOCF		13	•	1
				None (CC)	-t'	•+	(•)	1
	Exploratory: change from	0-12	ITT	LOCF	5	•	•	1
	baseline in DLQI, SF-36, EQ-	12-24	ITT	LOCF	)	•	•	
	PSO	24-48	ITT	LOCE			•	1
	Exploratory (escalation): change	12-24	MITT24 &	LOCE		•	•	1
	and percent change from		subjects who	à				
	baseline/Week 12 in PASI		escalated due	D.				
			to IGA > 1 °					
			Week 12 GA	LOCF			(•)	1
			mon-jico					
		~	responder					
		24-52	MITT24 &	LOCF		•+	•	
			subjects who					
		C' il	escalated due					
		nitho .	to $IGA > 1$					
	2 <sup>1</sup>	an.	Week 12 IGA	LOCF			(•)	
	ni:	þ	non-					
	Ner		responder					4
	and it.	12-52	MITT48 &	LOCF			•	
	and is		subjects who					
	× <sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup>		escalated due					
	Exploratory (deep hald): row	24-52	10 IGA > 1	Nona (CC)		<b>e</b> <sup>+</sup>		4
	DASI scores raw DASI scores		subjects who	None (CC)			•	
	during the M1005 dose hold		are eligible to dose hold					
	interval after M1095 restart by							
	visits and as a function of time in							
	weeks, change and percent							
	change in PASI from							
d's	baseline/Week 24							

Note: (1) indicates the sensitivity analyses that are optional and may be performed.

The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included and automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation analyses planned for final analysis may be included. The automation and the automation and the automation analysis may be automation and the automat \*: The list for IA2 may not be exhaustive and additional analyses planned for final analysis may be included in

#### 4.1.1.1 Complete Cases (CC)

Where stated, efficacy and quality of life data will be analyzed without any imputation using complete cases to assess the imputation approaches. A complete case will be a subject with no missing data at the considered timepoint and who did not discontinue treatment during this period before this timepoint.

#### 4.1.1.2 Non-Responder Imputation (NRI)

application Where specified, missing dichotomous categorical efficacy data (such as clinical response) will be imputed with Non-Responder Imputation (NRI). NRI will assume a non-response for the considered endpoint at any assessment that is missing. This may arise because of a missed assessment, discontinuation due to any reasons from study treatment or study at any time point prior to the cutoff analysis date regardless of whether the subject was a responder at the time of dropout.

NRI will be the primary imputation approach for the primary and key secondary analyses (as oranyvari specified in Table 4.4).

#### 4.1.1.3 Last-Observation Carried Forward (LOCF)

Where stated, missing categorical and continuous efficacy data will be imputed with Last Observation Carried Forward (LOCF). LOCF approach will consist in carrying forward the value of the last observed non-missing post-baseline assessment to the subsequent scheduled and missing assessment. In case of missing baseline i.e. of absence of an observed assessment prior to the first administration of treatment at Week 0, no imputation of baseline will be performed. In addition, if a subject did not have at least one observed post-baseline assessment during the considered period, no LOCF will be performed on the missing postbaseline assessments. li,

This approach will assume that any subjects who withdraw the treatment or study due to any reasons maintain the same value that was observed at the last non-missing post-baseline assessment before withdrawing. Similarly, for subjects who miss an assessment, the approach will assume that they maintain the same value that was observed at the last non-missing postbaseline assessment until they return to a visit and a new value is observed.

# 4.1.1.4 Multiple Imputation (MI)

Missing pre-specified categorical and continuous efficacy data will be imputed with MI under Missing at Random (MAR) assumption using the ITT population (Enders, 2010). MI method will be applied on the data of a given endpoint that are assumed to be MAR.

The current assumption on which the primary analysis is based is that all subjects with a missing response at a given timepoint and/or with missing responses after treatment withdrawal are regarded as non-responder, non-response is assumed regardless of whether the subject responded to the treatment at the time of the drop-out. The secondary analyses using LOCF approach assume that all subjects with missing data at a given timepoint and/or after treatment withdrawal maintain their last observed assessment over time.

MI under MAR assumption assumes that dropouts behave similarly to other subjects in the same treatment group who did not withdraw and continued to be treated with the study treatment. In terms of efficacy, this will estimate the effect of treatment as if all subjects were treated as randomized.

extension of such application MI will be implemented in three steps using SAS<sup>®</sup>, version 9.4 or higher (see Figure 4.1.). Depending on the nature of data, some of the steps may have some specificities (Demirtas et al., 2008). MI method assumes a multivariate normal distribution for the continuous variable of interest (e.g. PASI percent change) at each visit.

#### 4.1.1.4.1 Step 1: Imputation Phase

#### **1.a.** Initialization

Create a dataset with only one record per subject containing all scheduled assessments at each visit including the baseline assessment, the planned treatment group and all covariates of the imputation model to use SAS® PROC MI. The covariates of the imputation model will be the stratification factors as randomized at the least. Other covariates such as sites, gender may be

considered to be added. **1.b. Exploration of the Missing Data Pattern** Check the pattern of missing data. The pattern of missing data may be intermittent or nonmonotone, i.e. that a subject may miss an assessment at a planned visit and may return for assessment at the subsequent visits before study completion or treatment withdrawal. That will be the assumption by default. However, the pattern might be monotone for shorter periods such as the induction period up to Week 12 i.e. no subjects miss a scheduled visit before withdrawing treatment or completing the period.

If the pattern for the considered period is intermittent, please go to Step 1.c. Otherwise, go to Step 1.d.

### 1.c. Partial Imputation of intermittent Missing Data

Generate *n* datasets with a monotone missing pattern using a Markov Chain Monte Carlo (MCMC) method with one single chain, 1000 burn-in iterations at least, and a noninformative Jeffreys prior for each treatment group. The model will include weight category and prior use of biologic therapy stratum derived from the observed values (actual stratum), the baseline and post-baseline assessments. Each intermittent missing value will be imputed using independent samples that are generated by MCMC from the posterior distribution.

The chosen *n* will be 100 imputed datasets at least. A larger number for *n* such as 500 or 1000 might be considered depending on the computational cost. If the baseline assessment was missing, the baseline will be imputed at this step.

#### 1.d. Imputation of Monotone Missing Data

Impute the monotone missing data using a Bayesian framework for each treatment group. The model will include the explanatory variables of actual weight and prior use of biologic therapy stratum, the assessment at baseline and the assessments at all visits. If step 1.c. was skipped, the *n* datasets will be generated at that stage.

No rounding or range restrictions will be applied to imputed values during Steps 1.c and 1.d (Horton et al., 2003). The imputation (Steps 1.c and/or 1.d) will be run multiple times with different random seeds to ensure that the imputation model convergence was reached.



Analyze the *n* imputed datasets separately using a Cochran-Mantel-Haenszel (CMH) analysis for the binary variables and an ANCOVA for the continuous variables.

#### 2.a. Binary Variables

The analysis model and the displayed statistics will be identical to those described for the primary or secondary analyses (refer to Sections 4.2.1.3 and 4.2.2.2.1 for further details). Briefly, a CMH analysis with the actual weight category and prior use of biologic therapy stratum as the stratification factors will be performed for each imputed dataset yielding nSuch application common CMH ORs with their 95% CI and n p-values for each pairwise treatment comparison at a given visit where applicable.

#### 2.b. Continuous Variables

Treatment comparisons will be made for each imputed dataset using an ANCOVA model including planned treatment group, actual weight category and prior use of biologic therapy stratum as factors and the baseline value as a covariate in the model as described in Section 4.2.2.2.3. The Least-Squares Means (LSM) along with the SE and 95% CI for each treatment group and the differences in LSM for each pairwise treatment comparison, their associated SE, 95% CI and p-value will be computed for the *n* datasets at the specified visits.

#### 4.1.1.4.3 Step 3: Pooling Phase

The analysis results from the n imputed datasets will be combined into an overall result for each treatment comparison and visit using SAS® PROC MANALYZE.

20

orani

#### **3.a. Binary Variables**

3.a. Binary Variables Rubin's rules for combining results from multiple imputed datasets are based on the assumption that the statistics estimated from each imputed dataset are normally distributed (Rubin D., 1976). Therefore, estimates of ORs that follow a log normal distribution will be pooled after using a log transformation. Similarly, a Wilson-Hilferty transformation will be applied before combining the p-values given that the CMH test is based on a chi-square distributed statistic (Ratitch, B., Lipkovich, I. & O'Kelly, M., 2013).

#### 3.b. Continuous Variables

The LSM along with the SE and 95% CI and the differences in LSM, their associated SE, 95% CI and p-value for each treatment comparison will be combined using Rubin's rule (Rubin D., 1976).

# 4.1.1.5 Fipping Point Analysis

The tipping point analysis will only be performed on the primary analysis. It will test the null hypotheses of no treatment effect vs. placebo at Week 12 for the primary endpoint (IGA score of 0 or 1 at Week 12, with an IGA reduction from baseline of at least 2 points) as specified in Section 4.2.1.3 for a range of deviations from Missing At Random (MAR) assumption for the control group and the active treatment groups independently. It will include scenarios where the dropout on active treatment has worse outcomes than dropouts on the placebo group.

The purpose of the tipping point analysis is to assess how severe a departure from MAR has to be to overturn the conclusions drawn from the primary analysis. If the departures from MAR assumption to change the statistical significance (evidence of treatment effect) to statistical insignificance (no evidence of treatment effect) are deemed implausible, the tipping point analysis will give supportive evidence to the primary objective under Missing Not At Random (MNAR) assumption (Liublinska, V. and Rubin, D.B., 2014). such application

#### 4.1.1.5.1 Step 1: Imputation Phase

#### 1.a. Initialization

Create n copies of the analysis dataset and combine these datasets. The analysis dataset should be identical in structure and content to the dataset created for MI (refer to Section 4.1.1.4.1). **1.b. Imputation**For any active or control treatment group, different response probabilities (e.g. 0%, 20%,

40% 60%, 80% and 100%) will be applied successively to impute the missing values of IGA response at Week 12 and similarly for the placebo group. Missing IGA responses at Week 12 will be randomly imputed with 0 (i.e. non-responder) and 1 (i.e. responder) with the chosen response probabilities. The different steps below will be described with the aforementioned response probabilities provided as an example: 0%, 20%, 40% 60%, 80% and 100%.

This imputation will be performed by generating random numbers from a Bernoulli distribution to perform the imputation on the missing IGA responses at Week 12 in two steps:

- i. Impute the missing values of the placebo group by generating random numbers from a Bernoulli distribution using a response probability of 0% for example.
- ii. Impute the active/control treatment groups with the same methodology using a response probability of 20% for example.

#### 4.1.1.5.2 Step 2: Analysis Phase

Analyze the n imputed datasets separately using a CMH analysis as described in Section 4.1.1.4.2.

### 4.1.1.5.3 Step 3: Pooling Phase

The analysis results from the n imputed datasets will be combined into an overall result for each treatment comparison and visit using SAS® PROC MIANALYZE as described in Section 4.1.1.4.3 - binary variables. me

# <sup>6</sup>4.1.1.5.4 Step 4: Repetition Phase

Return to Step 1 using the next combination of response probability for the missing IGA response at Week 12: 0% for the placebo group and 40% for the active/control treatment group (0/0.4) and so forth.

For the following response probability combinations 0/0, 0/1, 1/0, 1/1, missing data will be imputed using one single dataset and analyzed as described in Section 4.1.1.4.2.

### 4.2 Efficacy

### 4.2.1 Primary Analysis

The primary objective is to assess the efficacy of four dose regimens of M1095 versus placebo on IGA score in subjects with moderate to severe chronic plaque-type psoriasis at Week 12. All subjects within the ITT population will be included in the primary efficacy analysis of the **4.2.1.1 Variable** 

extensio

The primary variable is the response rate for the IGA score at Week 12, which is defined as the proportion of subjects who achieve an IGA score of 0 or 1 at Week 2 and with an IGA reduction from baseline of 2 points or more at Week 12. This variable will be denoted by "IGA response" in subsequent sections.

Baseline IGA score is defined as the last non-missing IGA score prior to the first dose of study medication.

IGA response for subjects with missing baseline and/or Week 12 IGA score will be imputed using NRI approach. NRI consists in imputing any missing IGA score response as a nonresponse (see Section 4.1.1.2 for further information).

**4.2.1.2 Descriptive Analyses** Descriptive summary of the proportion of subjects achieving the primary endpoint will be tabulated by treatment group and also by treatment group and actual stratum ( $\leq 90$  kg and prior biologic use,  $\leq 90$  kg and no prior biologic use, > 90 kg and prior biologic use, > 90 kg and no prior biologic use) i.e. derived from the observed values of body weight and prior biologic use for all visits up to Week 12. Summary statistics will include the number and percentage of subjects achieving an IGA response for all visits up to Week 12.

The 95% confidence intervals of the binomial proportions will be estimated using the Clopper-Pearson exact interval.

The primar variable will also be listed by treatment group, subject and visit.

Bar plots of IGA responder rates (95% CI) by treatment group overall and for each stratum will be created.

# 40cum 4.2.1.3 Inferential Analyses

The IGA responder rates at Week 12 will be compared between treatment groups using CMH test stratified by actual prior use of biologic therapy (yes/no) and body weight stratum  $(\leq 90 \text{ kg}, > 90 \text{ kg})$  as observed at baseline. The following four null hypotheses will be individually tested at the unadjusted two-sided 5% significance level:
- H<sub>1</sub>: M1095 30 mg Q2W  $\times$  3, followed by 30 mg Q4W  $\times$  1, is not different from placebo with respect to achievement of IGA response,
- H<sub>2</sub>: M1095 60 mg Q2W  $\times$  3, followed by 60 mg Q4W  $\times$  1, is not different from placebo with respect to achievement of IGA response,
- H<sub>3</sub>: M1095 120 mg Q2W  $\times$  3, followed by 120 mg Q4W  $\times$  1, is not different from
- H4: M1095 120 mg Q2W × 6 is not different from placebo with respect to application achievement of IGA response
  resulting in the following comparisons at Week 12 between the treatment groups/regiments:
  M1095 30 mg wk 0, 2, 4, 8
  M1005 50

vs. placebo wk 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 10.

- M1095 60 mg wk 0, 2, 4, 8 •
- M1095 120 mg wk 0, 2, 4, 8 •
- M1095 120 mg wk 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10

The CMH Odds Ratio (OR) for the comparison of each M1095 treatment arm to placebo will Pication or any be presented along with its 95% CI and associated p-value.

### 4.2.1.4 Sensitivity Analyses

Several sensitivity analyses may be performed to assess the robustness of the primary analysis to changes among stratification factors as randomized, analysis population, missing data and definition of the primary endpoint (refer to Table 4.4 and Section 4.1.1).

### 4.2.1.4.1 Sensitivity Analysis to Stratification Factors

The assumption of homogeneity of the OR over the actual strata will be tested by the Breslow-Day statistic at a 10% significance level for each pairwise comparison to placebo.

In the event of non-homogeneity of the OR for a particular test, the corresponding treatment OR will be calculated separately with its 95% confidence interval for each stratum. Owing to the limited sample size in each stratum, no p-value will be reported, the main purpose of this assessment being to evaluate the relative magnitude of the treatment difference in each stratum.

In case of a large number of stratification errors, the primary analysis may be repeated as described in Section 4.2.1.3 but using the per randomized stratum i.e. as entered by the sites into the IRT system at the randomization.

### 42.1.4.2 Sensitivity Analyses to Analysis Population

Sensitivity analyses will be performed identically to the primary analysis but using the following populations: MITT12 and PP12.

### 4.2.1.4.3 Sensitivity Analyses to Missing Data

The primary analysis may be replicated using the ITT population:

- with missing data being imputed with:
  - $\circ$  LOCF (see Section 4.1.1.3),
  - $\circ$  MI (see Section 4.1.1.4)
  - Tipping point analysis (see Section 4.1.1.5)
  - on complete cases (see Section 4.1.1.1)
- (refer to Table 4.4 for further details about the pre-planned analyses).

such application In addition, the extent of missing IGA data will be summarized by visit and treatment group.

Figures of individual raw IGA as well as mean raw IGA may be provided for the subgroups of complete cases and cases with missing IGA assessment at Week 12, by treatment group and over time up to Week 12.

### 4.2.1.4.4 Sensitivity Analysis to Endpoint Definition

To assess the robustness of inferences to the definition of the primary endpoint, the same analysis as in Section 4.2.1.3 will be repeated by considering a different definition for an IGA responder: "complete IGA response" where a complete IGA response is defined as an IGA score of 0 and with an IGA reduction from baseline of 3 points or more.

### 4.2.2 Secondary Analyses

**4.2.2 Secondary Analyses** All subjects in the ITT population will be included in the secondary efficacy analyses.

The main estimands of the secondary objectives of longer-term efficacy after Week 12:

- for the binary endpoint IGA (and the key secondary endpoints PASI 75 / PASI 90 / PASI 100) is the difference in response proportions between treatment conditions at:
  - Week 24, Week 36
  - Week 48
- for the continuous endpoint PASI score (and the other secondary endpoint percentage of total BSA affected by plaque-type psoriasis) is the difference in means between treatment conditions in the change from baseline to:
  - Week 24, 0
  - Week 36.
  - Week 48

in the ITT population regardless of whether or not escalating to the M1095 120 mg from Week 12 or having dose held at Week 24 had occurred.

### 4.2.2.1 Variables

- IGA-derived endpoints,
- PASI-derived endpoints •

The secondary efficacy variables will include:						
• IGA-derived endpoints,						
• PAS	SI-derived endpo	ints	, 3.QX			
as defined i	n Table 4.5 belov	w.				
	Table	4.5: Secondary Efficacy Endpoints and Variables				
Endpoints	Type of Variables	Secondary Variables				
IGA- derived endpoints	Binary	<ul> <li>IGA response: proportion of subjects achieving an IGA score ≤ 1 and with an IGA reduction from baseline of 2 points or more at all visits up to Week 48.</li> </ul>				
	Categorical	• shift from baseline in IGA score category at all visits up to Week 48.				
	Time-to-event	<ul> <li>time to first IGA response from baseline.</li> <li>time to first complete IGA response from baseline.</li> </ul>				
PASI& BSA- derived	Binary	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 at all visits up to Week 48 (key secondary variables).</li> </ul>				
endpoints	Continuous	• absolute change and percent change from baseline in PASI score at all visits up to Week 48.				
		• absolute change from baseline in percentage of total BSA affected by plaque-type psoriasis.				

**Table 4.5: Secondary Efficacy Endpoints and Variables** 

The proportion of subjects in the eight categories of IGA (see below) will be determined for the shift analysis from baseline in IGA score category at each post-baseline visit from considering the individual IGA score at baseline in order to assess:

- worsening/stability in IGA score from baseline,
- improvement in IGA score from baseline.

a li			IGA Score	at each post-Ba	seline Visit	
N. A	IGA Score at Baseline	0	1	2	3	4
ine'	3		Improvement			Worsening/
CDI	4					Stability
J						

THIS

PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 response will be derived from the overall PASI score ranging from 0 for no signs of psoriasis up to 72 for the most severe form of the disease.

A PASI 75, PASI 90 responder is defined as a subject achieving an improvement (i.e. a reduction) of at least 75% and 90% respectively in PASI score compared to baseline. A PASI

100 responder will be a subject achieving a complete clearing of psoriasis at a post-baseline visit that is a PASI score of 0.

An improvement in PASI is represented by a decrease in PASI score from baseline. Percent change in PASI from baseline will be computed by dividing the change from baseline in PASI by the baseline PASI score and multiplying this result by 100.

The methods to handle missing binary, shift and continuous secondary efficacy variables are summarized in Table 4.4.

In the next subsections, the analysis of the secondary variables will be handled according to the type of variables: binary for proportions, categorical for shift from baseline, or continuous variation or extension for change from baseline and/or percent change variables.

### 4.2.2.2 Descriptive and Inferential Analyses

### 4.2.2.2.1 Binary and Categorical Variables

The proportions of the binary variables will be summarized by treatment group at each visit up to Week 52. Pairwise comparisons vs. placebo and pairwise comparisons across M1095 treatment arms will be made at each visit up to Week 12 and at Weeks 24, 36 and 48 using the CMH test of 2-by-2 tables stratified by actual prior use of biologics (yes/no) and body weight stratum ( $\leq 90 \text{ kg}$ , > 90 kg) in the same way as for the primary analysis (please refer to Section 4.2.1.3). No formal statistical testing will be performed between M1095 treatment arms and Secukinumab as the Secukinumab arm is for reference only. However, Secukinumab will be compared to placebo using the same methodology. In case of a large number of stratification errors, the key secondary analyses might be repeated as described in Section 4.2.1.3 but using the per randomized stratum as entered into the IRT system by the sites.

The assumption of homogeneity of association between treatment and the binary variables in the different actual strata will be tested at Weeks 12, 24, 36 and 48 for all pairwise comparisons M1095 vs. placebo at 10% significance level using the Breslow-Day test as explained in Section 4.2. b4.

For the categorical analyses, the proportion and number of subjects in each IGA category at a given visit from baseline will be presented by treatment group and over time at each visit up to Week 12% for the induction period, from Week 12 to Week 24 for the maintenance/escalation period and from Week 24 to Week 48 for the response assessment/dose hold period.

Bar plots and line plots of the responder rates with 95% CI will be provided by treatment group and over time up to Week 48 overall.

The binary secondary efficacy variables will be listed by treatment group and over time.

### 4.2.2.2.2 Time-to-event Variables

Time-to-event variables will be presented by treatment group with tables of Kaplan-Meier (KM) estimates as well as KM curves. For KM curves, the number of subjects that are still at risk (Pocock et al, 2012) will also be displayed under the time axis. In addition, the following descriptive statistics will be presented by treatment group: the number and percentage of IGA

.... continuous Variables .... continuous Variables The raw PASI score, absolute change and percent change from baseline in PASI score will be presented by treatment group and over time for all visits up to Week 52 using summary statistics and listings. Mean of change from baseline in PASI and its associated St. Will be displayed graphically over time by treatment group. For the percent change in PASI. treat treatment groups will 1-long and 1-

along with the corresponding SE, 95% CI and the LSM differences along with its SE, 95% CI and p-value will be obtained at each visit separately using an analysis of covariance (ANCOVA) model. The ANCOVA will include the planned treatment group, actual prior biologic and weight stratum as factors and the baseline value as a covariate. The residuals from the ANCOVA model will be examined to check that the assumptions of normality, 4.2.3 Exploratory Analyses The exploratory analyses are planned; in the exploratory analyses are planned; it is the exploratory are planned; it is th

- After Week 12: to evaluate the change in efficacy from Week 12 to Week 24 in subjects who undergo dose escalation or maintenance at Week 12 in the MITT population who enter the maintenance/escalation period (MITT24),
- After Week 24 to explore the effect of withholding M1095 at Week 24 in IGA score • of 0 responders in the MITT population who enter the response assessment/dose hold period (M4TT48).

Sensitivity analyses for the exploratory analyses after Week 12 and Week 24 will not be performed unless deemed necessary.

### 4.23.1 Exploratory Analyses after Escalation at Week 12

Åt Week 12, subjects randomized to M1095 30 mg or M1095 60 mg are planned to undergo a dose escalation to M1095 120 mg if they fail to achieve an IGA response i.e. if they have an IGA > 1.

The assessment of change in efficacy from Week 12 to Week 24 will be investigated in the subgroup of subjects who were randomized to 30 mg and 60 mg M1095 at Week 0 and who

underwent dose escalation at Week 12 due to IGA > 1 during the period starting from Week 12 to Week 24 by treatment sequence of the induction and maintenance/escalation periods (the treatment sequence will be the combination of the initial randomized treatment and the administered treatment at Week 12). In addition, the change in longer term efficacy to Week 48 in this subgroup of subjects will be explored.

Tł	ne explorato	ory analyses	after Week 12 will be conducted in the MITT24 population.	i cation
4.	2.3.1.1 Va	riables		ch applie
Tł	ne post-Wee	ek 12 explor	atory objective will be examined with the help of these variables. $\stackrel{\scriptscriptstyle (s)}{\to}$	>
	Endpoints	Type of Variables	Exploratory Variables	
	IGA-	Binary	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects with an IGA response at all visits from Week 12.</li> <li>proportion of subjects with a complete IGA response at all visits from Week 12.</li> </ul>	
	derived	Categorical	• shift from Week 12 in IGA score category at all post-Week 12 visits.	
	endpoints	Time-to- Event	<ul> <li>time to first IGA response from Week 12.</li> <li>time to first complete IGA response from Week 12.</li> </ul>	
		Binary	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 response at all visits from Week 12.</li> </ul>	
	PASI- derived endpoints	Continuous	<ul> <li>raw PASI score at all visits from Week 12.</li> <li>absolute change and percent change from baseline in PASI score at all visits from Week 12.</li> <li>absolute change and percent change from Week 12 in PASI score at all visits from Week 12.</li> </ul>	
	<b>T</b> -1	LL AC Engle	The stand of the s	

Table 4.6: Exploratory Endpoints and Wariables Related to Post-Week 12 Dose Escalation/Maintenance Analyses

The shift from Week 12 in IGA score category at each post-Week 12 visit will be determined from considering the individual IGA score at Week 12 in order to assess:

- worsening/stability in IGA score from baseline,
- improvement in IGA score from baseline.

_			IGA Score at each post-Week 12 Visit				
Γ	IGA Score at Week	0	1	2	3	4	
				Stabla	Worsening		
X MY	3 4		Improvement	Stable	Response	1	

The two time-to-event endpoints will measure the planned time interval in weeks between the  $\tilde{W}$ Week 12 assessment and the first assessment from Week 12 with an IGA response, or a complete IGA response, respectively. Data will be censored at the last assessment visit if the event had not occurred up to that point.

Page 42 of 77

The continuous variables will be imputed with LOCF whereas the categorical variables will be imputed with NRI. No other imputations will be implemented for these exploratory variables unless indicated otherwise.

### 4.2.3.1.2 Descriptive Analyses

Induction (Week 0-12) and maintenance/escalation (Week 12-24) periods (refer to Table 4.7) in the subgroup of subjects randomized to M1095 30 and 60 mg at Week 0 who dose application escalated: (2b) 30mg (x4), Q4/Esc to 120mg (3b) 60mg (x4), Q4/Esc to 120mg.

		TreatmenCLabel	
	Dose		<b>Response</b>
	Escalation	Maintenance	Assessment/
	due to	Escalation	Dose Hold
	IGA > 1 at	Period	Period
	Week 12?	and a	
		12 2	4 52
Planned Treatment Group with Dose Escalation		<u>~</u>	<b>──</b> →
	atili atili	·	(in weeks)
(1) - Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8	R N/a	Plac/	
(and /M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16 and Q4W)	O, TOL	120mg (x4), Q4	
(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 (and	10		
12 and Q4W)	N/A	Secukinumab	
(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and:	No	30mg (x4), Q4/	
(2a) Q4W if no escalation at Week 12)	NO	No Esc	
(2b) M1095 120 mg O4W if escalation at Week 12)		30mg (rd) 04/	30mg (x4) 04/
Nº V	Yes	$\frac{30 \text{ mg}(x4)}{\text{Fee to } 120 \text{ mg}}$	Soling (14), Q4/
		Esc to 120mg	Esc to 120mg
(3) - M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and:		60 mg (x4) 04/	
(3a) Q4W if no escalation at Week 12)	No	No Esc	
- Contraction of the second se		I to Life	
		60mg (x4), O4/	60mg (x4), O4/
(3b) M1095 120 mg Q439 if escalation at Week 12)	Yes	Esc to 120mg	Esc to 120mg
<u> </u>			
(4) - M1095 120 mg at Week 0 2 4 8 (and 12 and O8W)	N/A	120mg (x4) 08	
(1) -111030 120 mg at week 0, 2, 4, 0 (and 12 and 20 W)	11/21	120mg (A+), Q0	
(5) - M1095 120 mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10 (and			
12 and Q4W)	N/A	120mg (x6), Q4	
S			

Note: The only treatment groups displayed in all exploratory analyses after Escalation at Week 12 are the treatment groups displayed in bold in the table. The other treatment groups (identified by rows in grey) are only displayed for completeness and information.

### Table 4.7: Planned Treatment Groups with Dose Escalation and their Labels for each Treatment Period for Exploratory Analyses after Week 12.

The variables in Table 4.6 will be presented per treatment group for the Maintenance/ Escalation Period: at Weeks 12, 14, 16, 20 and 24 and the Response Assessment/Dose Hold Period.

THIS

CONFIDENTIAL

No formal inferential analyses will be conducted. Comparisons of treatment groups (1), (4), (5) and (6) will be presented elsewhere. For treatment groups (2) and (3) after Week 12, comparisons will be biased due to the Week 12 treatment change being based on postrandomization unfavorable event of lack of efficacy. Comparisons after Week 12 based on descriptive statistics will be made between treatment groups of subjects who dose escalated in subjects who were initially randomized to M1095 30 mg and M1095 60 mg at Week 0.

### 4.2.3.1.3 Binary and Categorical Variables

application The number and proportion of subjects for each binary variable of Table 4.6 will be described in a tabulated and graphical manner per treatment group for each visit with the time in weeks since Week 12. The 95 % exact CI of the proportion will also be presented.

Line plots will present the responder proportions (and its 95% CI) by treatment group and over time from Week 12 and possibly, from Week 0.

For the shift analyses, the proportion and number of subjects in each category will be or any varia presented by treatment group and over time.

### 4.2.3.1.4 Continuous Variables

The raw PASI score, absolute and percent change from baseline will be described for all visits in the same tabular and graphical way as in Section 4.2.2.2.3 per treatment group.

Means of absolute change from baseline in PASI and their associated standard error will be displayed graphically over time by treatment group.

These descriptive statistics above will also be produced for change and percent change from Week 12 in PASI. 0

A mean/SE plot of improvement in **RASI** over time will also be created, showing the effect of dose escalation from Week 12.

### Ŷ. 4.2.3.1.5 Time-to-event Variables

Time-to-event variables will be graphically presented by treatment group using Kaplan-Meier curves. The number of subjects that are still at risk (Pocock et al, 2012) will also be displayed under the time axis. In addition, the following descriptive statistics will be presented by treatment group:

- The number and percentage of IGA response, complete IGA response and censored data at each visit,
- document The median time (or other percentile) to IGA response or complete IGA response along with its 95% confidence interval.

### 4.2.3.1.6 Subset Analyses

The exploratory post-Week 12 analyses will be repeated to assess the longer-term efficacy in the MITT48 population that includes the MITT subjects who completed the maintenance/ escalation period and who entered the dose assessment/dose hold period.

Given the study design that allows subjects to dose escalate to the highest dose of M1095 at Week 12 following post-randomization efficacy assessments, selected exploratory analyses may be performed in a subset of subjects with similar post-baseline efficacy characteristics. The purpose of this population is to investigate the differences in a descriptive manner between subjects with similar post-baseline efficacy characteristics at the start of the considered period who had a dose change and those who did not have a dose change. Therefore, an additional population may be derived for this purpose:

Population	Description
Week 12 IGA Non-Responder Population	Week 12 IGA non-Responder Population is a subset of MITT12 population. This population includes all MITT12 subjects who are classified as IGA non-responders at Week 12 (i.e. with IGA > 1). Subjects will be analyzed according to planned treatment in the maintenance/escalation period (from Week 12 to Week 24).

Table 4.8: Definition of Additional Analysis Population for Exploratory Analyses

The exploratory post-Week 12 analyses may be repeated in the Week 12 IGA non-Responder Population. The aim is to compare all treatment groups from Week 12 to Week 24 in the MITT subjects who enter the maintenance/escalation period but who had an unfavorable efficacy event at Week 12 (all treatment groups will be included except for (2a) and (3a) – refer to Table 4.7).

### 4.2.3.2 Exploratory Analyses after Withholding/Restarting M1095 from Week 24

From Week 24, subjects receiving M1095 who were not escalated from M1095 30 mg or M1095 60 mg at Week 12 will have their M1095 treatment withheld (placebo will be given) if their IGA score equals 0 at Week 24. If their IGA score is 1 or more at Week 24, these subjects will stay on current dose.

Then, withheld subjects will restart M1095 at the previous dose level (Q4W) at the first visit post-Week 24 when their IGA is 1 or more.

The exploratory analyses after Week 24 will be conducted in the MITT48.

### 4.2.3.2.1 Variables

The post-Week 24 exploratory objectives will be explored with these variables:

Endpoints	Type of Variables	Exploratory Variables	
IGA- derived endpoints	Binary	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects with an IGA response at all visits from Week 24.</li> <li>proportion of subjects with a complete IGA response at all visits from Week 24.</li> <li>proportion of subjects requiring M1095 restart after withholding study drug at each visit from Week 24.</li> <li>cumulative proportion of subjects with M1095 restarted after withholding study drug at each visit from Week 24.</li> </ul>	
	Categorical	• shift from Week 24 in IGA score category at all post-Week 24 visits.	200
	Time-to- Event	<ul> <li>time to first IGA ≥ 1.</li> <li>time from M1095 restart to first complete IGA response during Week 24-3 48 interval.</li> </ul>	Sch. St.
PASI- derived endpoints	Binary	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 response at all visits from Week 24.</li> <li>proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 response by visit during the M1095 dose hold interval.</li> <li>proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 response at all visits after M1095 restart.</li> </ul>	
	Continuous	<ul> <li>raw PASI score at all visits from Week 24.</li> <li>absolute change and percent change from baseline in PASI score at all visits from Week 24.</li> <li>absolute change and percent change from Week 24 in PASI score at all visits from Week 24.</li> <li>raw PASI score by visit during the W1095 dose hold interval.</li> <li>raw PASI score at all visits after W1095 restart.</li> <li>raw PASI score after M1095 restart as a function of time in weeks.</li> </ul>	

Table 4.9: Exploratory Endpoints and Variables Related to Post-Week 24 Dose Hold/Restart Analyses

Missing continuous or categorical variables will not be imputed. Time-to event data will be censored at the last assessment visit if the event had not occurred up to that point. **Keti**r

### 4.2.3.2.2 Descriptive Analyses

Data will be summarized according to the assigned treatment sequence for both maintenance/escalation (Week 12-24) and response assessment/dose hold (Week 24-48) periods (see Table 4.10):

(1.i) Plac/120mg (34), Q4/Hold

(1.j) Plac/120mg (x4), Q4/No Hold

(2a.i) 30mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/Hold

(2a, 530mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/No Hold

 $Q^{(x+y)}$ , Q4/No Esc/No H (3a.i) 60mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/Hold (3a.j) 60mg (x4)  $Q^{4/x}$ 

(3a.j) 60mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/No Hold

- (4.i) 120mg (x4), Q8/Hold
- (4.j)120mg (x4), Q8/No Hold
- (5.i) 120mg (x4), Q4/Hold

(5.j) 120mg (x4), Q4/No Hold.

As treatment assignment is based on post-randomization efficacy results, only descriptive treatment summaries will be reported. No inferential analyses are planned. More specifically, the descriptive comparisons with exploratory nature will be made:

- between treatment group of subjects who had their dose hold from Week 24

in the MITT48 population who were initially randomized to any of the M1095 at Week 0 and who did not dose escalated. Binary, continuous and time to

Binary, continuous and time-to-event data will be reported in a way similar to the corresponding endpoints for the post-Week 12 combests corresponding endpoints for the post-Week 12 exploratory analyses (refer to Sections atien 4.2.3.1.3, 4.2.3.1.4 and 4.2.3.1.5 for further information).

		Treatment Label
	IGA = 0	
	at Week	Response Assessment/Dose Hold
	24?	Period
Planned Treatment Group and Dose Escalation/Hold		(Week 24-52)
(1) - Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8 (and		all'
(1.i) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16, 20 and	Yes	Plac/120mg (x4), Q4/Hold
dose hold from Week 24)		× O <sup>N</sup>
(1.j) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16 and Q4W	JNo.	Plac/120mg (x4), Q4/No Hold
(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 (and 12)	D NOR	
and Q4W)		
(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and	Vas	30mg (x4) 04/No Esc/Hold
(2a.i) Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)	165	30mg (x4), Q4/10 Est/110m
(2a.j) Q4W	No	30mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/No Hold
(2b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	N/A	
(3) - M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and	Ver	(0mg (rd), O4/No Eco/Hold
(3a.i) Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)	res	oung (x4), Q4/No Esc/Hold
(3a.j) Q4W)	No	60mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/No Hold
(3b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	N/A	
(4) - M1095 120 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and	Ver	120mg (r.4) 08/II.a.l.d
(4.i) 12 and Q8W)	res	120mg (x4), Q8/Hold
(4.j) 12 and Q8W and dose hold from Week 24)	No	120mg (x4), Q8/No Hold
(5) - M1095 120 mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10	Ver	120mg (x6) 04/Hold
(5.i) 12 and Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)	res	120mg (x0), Q4/Holu
(5.j) 12 and Q4W	No	120mg (x6), Q4/No Hold

Note: The only treatment groups displayed in all exploratory analyses after M1095 dose hold/restart from Week 24 are the treatment groups identified by rows in white in the table. The other treatment groups identified by rows in grey are only displayed for completeness and information and will be presented in other tables. The descriptive comparisons will be made between treatment group of subjects who had their dose hold from Week

# Table 4.10: Planned Treatment Groups with Dose Escalation/Hold and their Labels for each Treatment Period for Exploratory Analyses after Week 24.

### 4.3 Quality of Life

All subjects in the ITT population will be selected for the analyses of Quality of Life (QoL) variables.

### 4.3.1 Variables

The QoL variables are:

- Change from baseline in Dermatology Life Quality Index (DLQI) total score and in Application DLQI subscales,
  Achievement of DLQI of 0 or 1 (binary variable),
  Change from baseline in the norm-based Short Form 36 (SF-36) scores for the eight sections and for the physical and mental summary components, of Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroQuality of Life Orman measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroPhysical measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroPhysical measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroPhysical measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroPhysical measured by VAS and The Change from baseline in EuroPhysical measured by VAS and The Change from baseline measured by VAS and The Change from ba
- measured by VAS and EQ-PSO score for the 7 dimensions.

The derivations of QoL scores are described in the Appendices on page 68.

LOCF will be used to impute any missing values for the continuous variables and NRI for the binary variable (refer to Section 4.1.1.3).

### 4.3.2 Descriptive Analyses and Inferential Analyses

The raw continuous QoL variables at baseline and post-baseline visits as well as their change from baseline will be presented by randomized treatment group at each visit up to Week 48 using summary statistics, listings and appropriate graphical methods.

Treatment comparisons of continuous QoL variables will be assessed at all visits up to Week 12 by an ANCOVA including planned treatment group, actual prior biologic and weight stratum as factors and the baseline value as a covariate in the model. The treatment LSM, the corresponding SE and 95% CI and the pairwise LSM difference, the corresponding SE, 95% CI and p-value will be presented. This analysis will be replicated at Weeks 24, 36 and 48.

The proportions of the binary variable will be examined and reported as described in Section 4.2.2.2.1.

The analyses of QoL variables may be replicated using complete cases. Additional exploratory analyses of QoL may be performed.

### Subject Demographics/Other Baseline Characteristics

The subject demographics and other baseline characteristics will be reported in the analysis populations specified in Table 4.11.

### 4.4.1 Variables

The variables are the demographics of subjects plus all data for background and other baseline characteristics such as relevant medical history, results of laboratory screens, drug tests and any other relevant information.

The demographics of subjects include:

- of such application continuous age (in years) along with categorical age ( $< 45, \ge 45 - < 65, \ge 65$ ), gender, • race and ethnicity,
- country, geographical region (Europe, North America),
- height (in cm) at screening, continuous weight (in kg) as well as categorical weight  $(\leq 90 \text{ kg}, > 90 \text{ kg})$  and Body Mass Index (BMI) (in kg/m<sup>2</sup>) at baseline. BMI will be calculated by dividing weight in kilograms by height in meters squared.
- randomized prior biologic use and weight stratum (as entered into JRT system by the sites).

Other baseline characteristics consist of:

- psoriasis medical history i.e. the number of significant flares of disease activity in the last 6 months, the time since diagnosis and the actual prior biologic use,
- results of laboratory screens, drug tests at baseline ٠
- IGA score, PASI score and percentage of BSA affected by psoriasis at baseline, •
- DLQI total score, EQ-PSO total score (VAS), SF-36 physical and mental component • summaries at baseline,
- PHQ-8 and eC-SSRS total score at baseline.

The variables of subject demographics and other baseline characteristics will be performed in the ITT population. Besides, these variables will be reported in other analysis populations to evaluate the differences between non-randomized treatment groups that are assigned on the basis of post-randomization efficacy results in the exploratory analyses after Week 12 and Week 24. All subjects within the ITT population and/or safety population will be included in the analysis of the results of laboratory screens, drug tests, PHQ-8 and eC-SSRS total score (refer to Table 4.14) for further details).

### 4.4.2 Descriptive Analyses

All data for background and demographic variables, psoriasis medical history, results of laboratory screens and drug tests, IGA score, PASI score and percentage of BSA as well as QOL and Patient Reported Outcomes (PRO) data will be summarized by treatment group as specified in Table 4.11 at screening and/or baseline visit. No treatment comparisons will be performed. This data will also be listed by treatment group and subject.

Demography Variables	Analysis Population	
<ul> <li>Demographics</li> <li>Psoriasis medical history</li> <li>IGA score, PASI total score and percentage of BSA affected by psoriasis at baseline</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>ITT Population</li> <li>MITT24 Population by assigned treatment sequence for both induction and maintenance/escalation periods.</li> <li>MITT48 by assigned treatment sequence for both maintenance/escalation and response assessment/dose hold.</li> <li>Week 12 IGA non-Responder Population by assigned treatment sequence for both induction and maintenance/escalation periods (optional)</li> </ul>	Jch application
• DLQI total score, EQ-PSO total score, SF-36 physical and mental component summaries at baseline	• ITT Population	
• Results of laboratory screens, drug tests at baseline, PHQ-8 and eC-SSRS total score at baseline	• ITT Population/Safety Population	

Table 4.11: Analysis Populations in Function of Demography Variables

4.5 Analysis Populations
 4.5.1 Variables
 The analysis populations will be summarized in the enrolled population with the following variables:
 number and percentage of subjects

- and by reasons for exclusion,
- number and percentage of subjects who are:
  - randomized 0
  - in the ITT population,
    - in the MITT populations,
  - in the PP populations,
  - in the safety population. Ο

## documentmust 4.5.2 Descriptive Analyses

The incidence in the various analysis populations will be presented by treatment group and overall if applicable for each treatment period. In addition, a listing of subjects excluded from each analysis population with the primary reason for exclusion whenever available will be produced.

### 4.6 Subject Disposition

Subject disposition will be analyzed in the enrolled population unless stated otherwise.

### 4.6.1 Variables

Subject disposition will be described by:

- , of such application the number and percentages of subjects who are screened, randomized, treated, who completed the treatment period and/or study, who discontinued along with the primary reason for early discontinuation for the study overall as well as for each treatment period separately.
- the number and percentages of subjects who dose escalated from Week 12 or of subjects who had dose withheld from Week 24 for the maintenance/escalation period and the response assessment/dose hold period respectively
- the number and percentage of subjects with important protocol deviations in the ITT • population overall and grouped into categories for the study overall as well as for each treatment period separately,
- the number and percentages of subjects in analysis populations and excluded from the analysis populations,
- the time in weeks to study drug discontinuation due to any reasons and due to an AE ٠ for the induction period.

To assess the exploratory analyses after Week 12 and 24, the disposition of subjects after the post-randomization treatment assignment at Week 12 or Week 24 will be explored in the MITT24 or MITT48 populations and by assigned treatment sequence for the maintenance/escalation period or dose assessment/response hold period respectively using these variables: ςΟ

- the number and percentage of subjects completing the maintenance/escalation period • or dose assessment/response hold period,
- discontinuing the treatment during the maintenance/escalation period or dose assessment/response hold period and by primary discontinuation reason.

### 4.6.2 Descriptive Analyses

Subject disposition variables will be summarized by treatment group.

In addition, a listing of important protocol deviations will be presented by subject and treatment broken down by center.

### 4.6.3 Graphical Presentation

The time in weeks to study drug discontinuation due to any reasons and due to an AE will be represented graphically with Kaplan-Meier plots by treatment groups for the ITT population during the induction period.

and of Week 12. For other subjects who did not withdraw during the induction period. bu Natiation of extension during this period when they last received study treatment.

This graphical presentation and descriptive statistics will be repeated overall.

### 4.7 Treatment Compliance

All subjects within the safety population will be included in the data analysis.

**4.7.1 Variables** Treatment exposure will be characterized by the following variables:

- the duration of study exposure that corresponds to the period from the date of the first dose of study drug to either the date of last study visit (Week 52) for the subjects who completed the study or the date of discontinuation for subjects who discontinued during the study,
- the duration of treatment exposure in days and in subject-years including the duration of dose hold in days for the response assessment/dose hold period (subject-years is calculated by adding the number of subjects in the group and multiplying that number by the years that subjects were on treatment),
- the frequency of treatment exposure determined by the number of injections received,
- the actual amount/dose in mg received by the subjects as well as the percentage of the • scheduled dose that was actually received,

Treatment compliance will also be described with:

- the number and proportion of subjects receiving the complete dose as scheduled,
- the number and proportion of subjects that are compliant and non-compliant in each treatment group.

For the induction and maintenance/escalation periods, the duration of treatment exposure is the difference in days between the date of last study visit in the considered treatment period unless subjects have discontinued during this period and the date/time of the first dose of study drug in the same period.

Exposure  $[\text{period } x] = \text{last study visit date } [\text{period } x] - 1^{\text{st}} \text{ study drug dose date/time } [\text{period } x].$ 

For subjects who have discontinued from placebo at or prior to the last visit of the induction period, the duration of exposure will be the sum of the number of days between the date/time of the first dose and the date of treatment discontinuation.

For subjects who have discontinued from M1095/Secukinumab treatment at or prior to the last visit of the induction or maintenance/escalation periods, the duration of exposure will be the sum of the number of days between the date/time of the first dose in the considered period and the date of the last dose before discontinuation and 56 days that correspond to the longest period of washout for M1095/Secukinumab. If the study discontinuation occurred within the 56 days after the last dose received, the duration of exposure will be defined as the difference in days between the date of study discontinuation and the date of first dose of study drug.

Exposure [period x] = last dose date/time [period x] - 1<sup>st</sup> study drug dose date/time [period x] + 56 days.

The treatment exposure of response assessment/dose hold period will be described by several variables:

- the number of subjects who have dose of study drug being withheld at Week 24,
- the duration in days of the dose being withheld during the period i.e. the difference in days between the date of the visit at Week 24 and the date/time of M1095 recommencement,
- the total duration in days of the dose being withheld since the last dose of M1095 i.e. the difference in days between the date of the last dose of study drug before dose of Week 24 being withheld i.e. at Week 20 and the date/time of M1095 recommencement (see Table 4.12).

The duration of exposure to M1095/seculariumab treatment overall during the combined induction, maintenance/escalation and response assessment/dose hold periods be calculated as follows:

Secukinumab: Exposure [overall] = date/time of last dose - date/time of 1<sup>st</sup> dose + 56 days.

M1095: Exposure [overall] = date/time of last dose – date/time of  $1^{st}$  dose –  $d_1$  + 56 days.

with the date/time of the first dose as described in Table 4.12 for the different treatment groups and subtracting the dose hold duration for the overall period while considering the 5 half lives of the M1095 treatment ( $d_1$ ) as explained in Table 4.12. This duration will also be expressed in subject-years by adding the amount of times in days that subjects spent on treatment for all subjects divided by the total number of days in a year i.e. 365.25.

A subject being administered the complete dose at a given visit is a subject who received the planned number of injections and the planned dosage in mg per injection. A subject being administered the complete dose overall is a subject who received the cumulative number of injections and the cumulative dosage in mg as planned.

A subject will be considered overall compliant for each study period or overall if this subject is missing no more than 20% of the planned treatment and not missing two or more consecutive planned dosing occasions of the considered period or overall. Although subjects will receive two injections at each visit, the two injections at the same visit will be regarded

THIS

as a single dosing occasion. If a subject misses two injections at a visit, this subject will be reported as missing the dosing occasion at this visit.

	First	Total Dose Hold Duration	Dose Hold	
	Dose	(d) since last dose of study drug	Duration for Overall	
		(in days)	Period (d <sub>1</sub> )	
			(in days)	05
Actual Treatment Group			lt d–56 <0,	
(1) D1 1 (W 1010246061			d1=0 500	
(1) – Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8 (and (1.i) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16, 20 and dose hold from Week 24)	Week 12	d = M1095 Restart – Week 20*	d <sub>1</sub> = 0 − 56	
(1.j) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16 and Q4W	Week 12	N/A	$d_1 = 0$	
(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and (2b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	Week 0	N/A itation	$d_1 = 0$	
(2a.i) Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)	Week 0	d = M1095 Restart - Week 20*	$d_1 = d - 56$	
(2a.j) Q4W)	Week 0	N/A	$d_1 = 0$	1
(3) - M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and (3b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	Week 0	N/AO	$d_1 = 0$	
(3a.i) Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)	Week 0	d = M1095 Restart – Week 20*	$d_1 = d - 56$	
(3a.j) Q4W)	Week 0	N/A	$d_1 = 0$	
(4) - M1095 120 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and (4.i) 12 and Q8W and dose hold from Week 24)	Week 0	d = M1095 Restart – Week 20*	$d_1 = d - 56$	
(4.j) 12 and Q8W	Week 0	N/A	$d_1 = 0$	
(5) - M1095 120 mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 5, 8, 10 (5.i) 12 and Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)	Week 0	d = M1095 Restart – Week 20*	$d_1 = d - 56$	
(5.j) 12 and Q4W	Week 0	N/A	$d_1 = 0$	
(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 (and 12 and Q4W)	Week 0	N/A	N/A	

\*If a subject missed the dose of Week 20, the last visit of the maintenance/escalation period when the subjects were injected the study drug will be considered instead of Week 20.

### 4.7.2 Descriptive Analyses

The duration of study exposure will be summarized. Summary statistics of the duration of treatment exposure in days and in subject-years will be reported by treatment group for the induction, maintenance/escalation and overall periods. The treatment exposure of the response assessment/dose hold period will be described with the number of subjects who have dose withheld and with summary statistics of the duration of the dose being withheld since the last dose of M1095.

The frequency of treatment exposure and the amount/dose of treatment will be provided at each visit and overall for each treatment period. The percentage of the scheduled dose will be reported for the induction, maintenance/escalation and overall periods.

THIE

CONFIDENTIAL

All descriptive analyses on treatment compliance will be also summarized for the three treatment periods and for the overall study. The number and proportion of subjects having received the complete dose administered will be presented by each dose administered and overall by treatment group. Proportions of subjects compliant and non-compliant with study drug will be summarized by treatment group.

Data of previous and concomitant therapies will be summarized in the ITT Population. of such application Prior and concomitant therapies will be coded according to World Health C Dictionary (WHO-DD version of March 2018). Prior

- that started or continued on the day of or after randomization for the induction period • and the overall period (from Week 0 to 52),
- or that started or continued on the day of or after the first dose of study drug of the considered period i.e.:
  - o at Week 12 for the maintenance/escalation period,
  - at Week 24 for the response assessment/dose hold period. 0

In case of missing start and end dates, the medication will be considered as concomitant medication for the whole duration of study. If either the start date or the end date is missing or both dates are incomplete, the available information about the data will be used to infer from the randomization date/time if the therapy was taken prior to randomization or concomitantly:

- If the end date is missing and:
  - the start date is available and complete and:
    - after or on the day of randomization, the medication will be considered as concomitant,
    - prior to randomization, the medication will be regarded as concomitant therapy.

the start date is partial and:

the partial part of the start date is after the randomization date, the medication will be inferred as concomitant,

the partial part of the start date is prior to or the same as the comparable part of the randomization date, the medication will be concomitant medication.

If the start date is missing and:

This document must

- the end date is available and complete and:
  - on the day of or after randomization, the medication will be considered as concomitant,
  - prior to randomization, the medication will be inferred as a prior therapy.
- the end date is partial and: 0
- the partial part of the end date is the same as or after the comparable application part of the randomization date, the medication will be concomitant the partial part of the
  - the partial part of the end date is prior to the comparable part of the randomization date, this medication will be regarded as previous.
- If both start and end dates are incomplete,
  - If the partial part of the end date is before randomization, the medication will be classified as prior,
  - If the partial part of the start date is the same as or after the comparable part of 0 the randomization date, the medication will be classified as concomitant.

The same rules will apply for the other treatment periods but using the first dose of study drug of the considered period as the reference date.  $\downarrow$ 

The number and percentage of subjects taking previous medications and previous psoriasis medications will be summarized by treatment group, Anatomical Therapeutic Class (ATC) and preferred name. Similarly, the concomitant medications will be summarized by treatment group, by ATC and preferred name for the induction period separately and for the study overall.

Previous and concomitant therapies will be listed by treatment group and subject. The therapies will be listed with dose unit, frequency, route of administration (if applicable), indication, start and end dates and the ongoing status.

A listing of any new treatments for psoriasis in subjects who early discontinued will be produced by treatment group and subject.

### 4.9 Safety and Tolerability Data

Safety data will be summarized in the Safety Population by actual treatment group.

Unless indicated otherwise, safety variables will be summarized separately for the induction period (Week 0 to 12) and the overall study (Week 0 to Week 52) per actual treatment group (refer to Table 4.2 and Table 4.3 for details about defining actual treatment groups). Overall study corresponds to the time interval from Week 0 to Week 52 for the subjects who completed the study or from Week 0 to the last follow-up for subjects who discontinued. Please note that for the overall safety analyses, the baseline for subjects who were randomized to placebo will be the last non-missing assessment before the first dose of M1095.

No formal statistical treatment comparisons of the safety data are planned.

Further safety analyses may be conducted for the overall period, maintenance/escalation and response assessment/dose hold periods as described in

Table 4.13, Table 4.14 and Table 4.15 after assessment of safety data and if deemed necessary or if indicated otherwise in this section.

### Table 4.13: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Pooled Safety Analyses of the Overall Period

necessary or if indicated otherwise in this section.		<u>^</u>
Table 4.13: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Pooled Safety Analys	es of the Overall Period	ation
Table 4.15. Actual Treatment Groups and then Eabers for Tooked Safety Analys	Treatment Label	OPICO
	Overall (Week 0-52)	N. N.
	Per actual received	
Actual Treatment Group*	doses	
(1) - (Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8 and) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16 and Q4W	Plac/120mg (x4), Q4a	
(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 (and 12 and Q4W)	Secukinumab	
(2a) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 and Q4W if no escalation at Week 12	30mg (x4), Q4 <sup>b</sup>	
(2b) - M1095 120 mg Q4W from Week 12 if escalation at Week 12	Presented separately	
(3a) - M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 and Q4W if no escalation at Week 12	60mg (x4), Q4c	
(3b) - M1095 120 mg Q4W from Week 12 if escalation at Week 12	Presented separately	
(4) - M1095 120 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and 12 and Q8W)	120mg (x4), Q8	
(5) - M1095 120 mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10 (and 12 and Q4W).	120mg (x6), Q4	
atte	Total 120 mg <sup>d</sup>	
	Total M1095e	

\*: For (2a), (3a), (4), (5) and (6), subjects will be assigned to a treatment group based on the actual treatment they received most. a: Plac/120mg (x4), Q4 include all subjects who were mostly administered M1095 120 mg from Week 12 to

Week 44 having received placebo during the induction period. The data will only be presented from Week 12 avi for this treatment group.

b: 30mg (x4), Q4 include the data of:

- (x4), Q4 include the data of: all subjects who did not escalate and who were mostly administered M1095 30 mg during the overall period
- all subjects who escalated at Week 12 from Week 0 to Week 12 only and who mostly received M1095 30 mg during the induction period.

c: 60mg (x4), Q4 include the data of:

- all subjects who did not escalate and who were mostly administered M1095 60 mg during the overall period S
- all subjects who escalated at Week 12 from Week 0 to Week 12 only and who mostly received M1095 60 mg during the induction period.

d: Total 120 mg will include the subjects who mostly received M1095 120 mg i.e. the following treatments: (1), (4), (5), (2b) and (3b). For (1), (2b) and (3b), only data from Week 12 of subjects who escalated to M1095 120 mg from Week 12 after receiving placebo, M1095 30 mg or 60 mg in the induction period will be

-eds<sup>1</sup> - Total M1095 (3);(4) and (5). This docum e: Tota M1095 will include all subjects who received M1095 at any time during the study i.e. (1), (2a), (2b),

Feriod						
		Treatm	ent Label			
	Dose Escalatio n due to IGA > 1 at Week 12?	Maintenance/ Escalation Period	Response Assessment/ Dose Hold Period	ation		
Actual Tractment Chann <sup>*</sup>		<u>12</u> 2	4 52	3199110		
(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and: (2a) Q4W if no escalation at Week 12)	No		(III Weeks)			
(2b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	Yes	30mg (x4), Q4/ Esc to 120mg	30mg (x4), Q4/ Esc to 120mg			
<ul><li>(3) - M1095 60 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and:</li><li>(3a) Q4W if no escalation at Week 12)</li></ul>	No	istion	5			
(3b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	Yes	60mg (x4), Q4/ Esc to 120mg	60mg (x4), Q4/ Esc to 120mg			

### Table 4.14: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the Maintenance/Escalation Daviad

\*: Subjects will be assigned to a treatment group based on the actual treatment they received most during the ication induction and maintenance/escalation periods.

Note: Rows in grey will not be presented in tables.

### Table 4.15: Actual Treatment Groups and their Labels for Safety Analyses of the Response Assessment/Dose Hold Period

	ALL ALON		Treatment Label	
	IGA = 0 at		Response Assessment/ Dose	
	Or thoi	Week 24?	Hold Period	
	Actual Treatment Group*		(Week 24-52)	
	<ul> <li>(1) - Placebo at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8 (and: 0.1.1)</li> <li>(1.i) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16, 20 and dose hold from Week 24)</li> </ul>	Yes	Plac/120mg (x4), Q4/Hold	
	(1.j) M1095 120 mg at Week 12, 14, 16 and Q4W	No	Plac/120mg (x4), Q4/No Hold	
	(6) - Secukinumab 300 mg at Week 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 (and 12 and Q4W)	N/A		
	<ul> <li>(2) - M1095 30 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and:</li> <li>(2a.i) Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)</li> </ul>	Yes	30mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/Hold	
	(2a.j) Q4W)	No	30mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/No Hold	
	(2b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	N/A		
	<ul> <li>(3) - M1095 60°mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and:</li> <li>(3a.i) Ø4W and dose hold from Week 24)</li> </ul>	Yes	60mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/Hold	
	(3a,j) Q4W)	No	60mg (x4), Q4/No Esc/No Hold	
	(3b) M1095 120 mg Q4W if escalation at Week 12)	N/A		
	(4) M1095 120 mg at Week 0, 2, 4, 8 (and: (4.i) 12 and Q8W)	Yes	120mg (x4), Q8/Hold	
	(4.j) 12 and Q8W and dose hold from Week 24)	No	120mg (x4), Q8/No Hold	
THISOU	<ul> <li>(5) - M1095 120 mg Q2W at Week 0, 2, 4, 6, 8, 10:</li> <li>(5.i) 12 and Q4W and dose hold from Week 24)</li> </ul>	Yes	120mg (x6), Q4/Hold	
*	(5.j) 12 and Q4W	No	120mg (x6), Q4/No Hold	

\*: Subjects will be assigned to a treatment group based on the actual treatment they received most during the induction, maintenance/escalation and response assessment/dose hold periods. Note: Rows in grey will not be presented in tables.

CONFIDENTIAL

### 4.9.1 Variables

Safety and tolerability data encompass vital signs, skin evaluations, ECGs, laboratory values, number and severity of adverse events, instruments to assess depression and suicidality such as electronic Columbia-Suicide Severity Rating Scale (eC-SSRS) and Personal Health sion of such application Questionnaire Depression Scale (PHQ-8).

### 4.9.2 Descriptive Analyses

### 4.9.2.1 Vital Signs

All vital signs data (systolic and diastolic Blood Pressure (BP), Heart Rate (HR), weight) will be listed up to Week 52 by treatment group, subject, and visit/time and when reference ranges are available, abnormalities will be flagged. Summary statistics for absolute values and change from baseline, will be provided by treatment group and visit/time. The number and percentage of subjects within each baseline category (low, normal, high and missing) versus the post-baseline category (low, normal, high and missing) of vital signs will also be summarized at all post-baseline visits (the low, normal and high categories will be defined as follows for these parameters: heart rate: <60 beats/min, 60-100 beats/min, >100 beats/min, systolic blood pressure: <90 mmHg, 90-139 mmHg, >139 mmHg, diastolic blood pressure: <60 mmHg, 60-89 mmHg, >89 mmHg and temperature: <36.5°C, 36.5-37.3°C, >37.3°C).

**4.9.2.2 Skin Evaluations** All skin evaluation data including any findings not typical of psoriasis, conduction of further skin assessments such as biopsy will be listed by treatment group, subject and visit up to 4.9.2.3 ECG Evaluations any mark

The ECG evaluations will be reported by treatment group for the induction period and the overall study. The number and proportions of subjects with a normal, abnormal, abnormal clinically significant or unevaluable overall 12-lead ECG evaluation will be reported by treatment group. In addition, summary statistics for the absolute values and change from baseline for ECG parameters will be provided by treatment group and visit/time. ECG parameters comprise HR, PR interval, QRS, QT interval and the corrected QT intervals i.e. QTcB using Bazett's correction and QTcF using Fridericia's correction QTcB is calculated calculated by dividing the QT interval by the cube root of the preceding R-R interval while by dividing the QT interval by the square root of the preceding R-R interval while QTcF is

A shift analysis from baseline will be implemented for PR, QRS, QT, QTcB and QTcF intervals and HR describing the change from baseline (normal, abnormal) to end of period/study (normal, abnormal, abnormal clinically significant or unevaluable) in ECG parameters.

The number and proportion of subjects with abnormal elevated QT, QTcB and QTcF intervals i.e. exceeding the upper limit value of 450 ms, 480 ms and 500 ms will be summarized by treatment group. The number and proportion of subjects who experience an increase from baseline in QT, QTcB and QTcF interval greater than 30 ms and 60 ms will also be reported by treatment group.

of such application All ECG data will be listed by treatment, subject and visit/time up to Week 48, abnormalities will be flagged.

### 4.9.2.4 Clinical Laboratory Evaluations

All laboratory data up to Week 52 including serology tests (at screening only), pregnancy tests (women only) and urinalyses will be listed by treatment, subject, and visit/time. If reference normal ranges are available, laboratory abnormalities will be flagged and the CTCAE grade included.

Summary statistics of hematology, chemistry and urinalysis data and their change from baseline in SI units will be provided by treatment group and visit/time. Unscheduled measurements e.g. laboratory re-test due to abnormal laboratory results or unplanned visits due to safety concerns will be excluded from this analysis.

In addition, the number and percentage of subjects with abnormal, high or low, hematology, chemistry and urinalysis values will be summarized by treatment group.

Individual subject changes from baseline to worst post-baseline assessment in laboratory parameters graded using CTCAE will be summarized using shift tables by treatment group for the induction and overall period. The worst post-baseline laboratory assessment will correspond to the worst post-baseline CTCAE grade observed on-treatment over all visits (including scheduled and unscheduled measurements).

For non-graded laboratory parameters, shift tables will present the number and percentages of subjects within each baseline category (low, normal, high and missing) versus the postbaseline category (low, normal, high and missing). The categories will be defined by using the minimum and maximum values. Minimum/maximum baseline value will be the lowest/highest non-missing value observed during the baseline period i.e. before the first dose of study treatment. The minimum/maximum post-baseline laboratory assessment will be determined relative to the reference normal ranges i.e. to on-treatment lowest decrease and highest increase from minimum/maximum baseline over all visits (including scheduled and unscheduled measurements) for the considered period. In addition, a shift table from normal/high baseline category to low post-baseline category will be produced using the minimum value. Similarly, a shift table from low/normal baseline category to high postbaseline category will be produced using the maximum value.

Scatterplots of minimum/maximum absolute laboratory values during baseline vs. minimum/ maximum absolute laboratory values during the treatment period will be presented with lines indicating the reference limits (Lower Limit Normal, Upper Limit Normal and absence of change from baseline).

### 4.9.2.5 Adverse Events

Treatment-Emergent AEs (TEAEs) per treatment period are AEs that emerge while on study treatment during a given treatment period (e.g. induction period), having been absent pretreatment, or that worsen during the considered period (e.g. induction period) relative to the pre-treatment state i.e. after baseline and on or prior to the date of the last visit of the considered period (e.g. Week 12 for the induction period). On study treatment during a treatment period is defined as the period from the first study treatment administration at the start of period (e.g. Week 0 for the induction period) up to the last visit of the treatment period for subjects who did not discontinue treatment during the considered period (e.g. Week 12 for the induction period) or for subjects who discontinued during the considered period, up to the end of the considered period or up to 8 weeks after the last dose of study treatment, whichever occurs first. TEAEs will be assigned to the actual treatment period to which they are considered treatment-emergent.

When considering the study overall, treatment-Emergent AEs (TEAEs) are AEs that emerge while on study treatment i.e. from the first study treatment administration up to 8 weeks after the last dose of study treatment, having been absent pre-treatment, or that worsen during study treatment relative to the pre-treatment state i.e. after baseline.

If the classification of an AE cannot be clearly established because of missing or incomplete date/time of AE, the AE will be classified as treatment-emergent. No imputation of missing or partial AE start and end dates will be performed.

To determine whether an AE is pre-treatment, on-treatment or post-treatment in case of partial or missing AE dates, the rules below will be followed:

- If the start date is incomplete and either the end date is incomplete or available:
  - if the non-missing part of the start date infers that the AE occurred post-treatment, the AE will be considered as post-treatment.
  - If the partial or complete end date indicates that the AE occurred prior to the first dose of study drug, the AE will be considered as pre-treatment.
  - If the partial start date does not give any evidence as to when the AE occurred during the study, and the end date infers that the AE stopped after the first dose of study drug, the AE will be flagged as on-treatment for all periods for which the first dose of study drug was started before the end of the AE.

• If the partial or complete start and end dates do not indicate as to when the AE started and ended compared to the first dose of study drug of any period, the AE will be flagged on-treatment for all periods.

If both start and end dates are both missing: the AE will be considered on-treatment and therefore a TEAE for all periods.

To determine the worsening of an AE during study treatment, the maximum severity for each AE during the baseline period will be considered. In case of missing severity, the conservative approach below will be followed:

• If an AE has a missing severity during the study treatment, it will be defined as treatment-emergent.

If the severity of an AE is missing at baseline and this event continues during the study treatment, this AE will be considered as treatment-emergent.

Adverse events of Special Interest (AESI) include cytopenias, liver function test changes/enzyme elevations, infections, injection-site reactions, allergic/hypersensitivity reactions, cerebrocardiovascular events, malignancies, depression, Crohn's disease and and the study and prior to first unblinding.
An overview table will present the number and percentage of subjects experiencing these application types of AEs below by treatment:

TEAEs,
TEAEs by relationship to investigational product,
serious TEAEs including deaths,
TEAEs by maximum severity,
deaths,
and TEAEs leading to study treatment discontinuation. or any value in the study the study the study the study the study is the study of study the study of study the study the study the study the study the study the study of study the study the study the study of study the study the study the study of study study study of study study of study study study study of study study study study study of study stud

Table 4.3, Table 4.13, Table 4.14 and Table 4.15).

For the overall period, the exposure-adjusted incidence per 100 subject-years will also be presented. The exposure-adjusted incidence will be calculated by dividing the number of subjects with AEs by the total person years of exposure during the treatment period (refer to Section 4.7). This result will be multiplied by 100 to obtain the exposure-adjusted incidence per 100 subject-years.

The AESI will also be displayed with an overview table by treatment for each treatment period and the overall periods.

The incidence of subjects with TEAEs will be summarized by the Medical Dictionary for Regulatory Activities (MedDRA) System Organ class (SOC) and Preferred Term (PT) and by treatment group. A subject with multiple AEs in the same SOC (or with the same PT) will only be counted once for that SOC (or PT). The PTs will be presented in decreasing order of frequency over all treatment groups within the SOC. Similarly, incidence tables will be produced for treatment-related TEAEs, for serious TEAEs, for TEAEs by maximum severity, for TEAEs deading to deaths and study drug discontinuations. In addition, the number and percentage of subjects with AESI will be presented by treatment group classed by SOC and PT. An additional summary table will be created to include the relatively common TEAEs i.e. with an incidence greater than 5%. All information obtained on adverse events will be listed by treatment group and subject. A listing of deaths will be also provided by indicating the study period in which the deaths occurred in the enrolled population.

THIS

### 4.9.2.6 Depression and Suicidality/Self-Injurious Behavior

Suicide-related thoughts and behaviors and self-injurious behavior with no suicidal intent based on the eC-SSRS, and depression based on the PHQ-8 will be listed by subject and visit up to Week 52.

In addition, the frequency and percentage of subjects with at least one post-baseline eC-SSRS assessment with suicidal ideation, suicidal behavior, suicidal ideation or behavior, treatmentemergent suicidal ideation and emergence of suicidal behavior will be summarized by treatment group (see Section 7.5 – Appendix E: Derivation of eC-SSRS for further information). The total PLO 8 areas a labeled in the sector of the sector o information). The total PHQ-8 score and absolute change from baseline will be described by a by-treatment summary table for each visit (see Section 7.4 – Appendix D: Scoring of PHO-

8). **4.9.3 Graphical Presentation** Boxplots to visualize trends and data distributions in longitudinal continuous safety data (vital signs, ECG parameters, laboratory parameters) will be see that 1 (vital signs, ECG parameters, laboratory parameters) will be produced by treatment group

4.10 Pharmacokinetic (PK) Parameters
All subjects within the pharmacokinetic population will be included in the PK parameter analysis and may be reported in a separate report

**4.10.1 Variables** M1095 serum concentrations in ng/mL will be assessed at the following visits: Weeks 0, 2, 4, 8, 12, 24, 36, 44, 48 and 52. SI

### Descriptive Analyses 4.10.2

Descriptive summary statistics of serum concentration will be provided for each treatment period by treatment sequence of the considered period and visit/sampling time point (the induction period summaries will present all treatment groups of Table 4.2 except for Secukinumab (6), Placebo (1) and total M1095, the maintenance/escalation period summaries will present all treatment groups of Table 4.14 in addition to Plac/120mg (x4), Q4, 30mg (x4), Q4/No Esc, 60mg (x4), Q4/No Esc, 120mg (x4), Q8, 120mg (x6), Q4, the response assessment/dose hold period summaries will present all treatment groups of Table 4.14 and Table 4.15). The summary statistics will include arithmetic and geometric means, SD, arithmetic and geometric CV, minimum, median, and maximum and the frequency (number of subjects and percentage) of concentrations below the LLOQ. All concentrations below LLOQ will be treated as zero in summary statistics for concentration data. The geometric mean will not be reported if the data include zero values. Serum concentrations will also be listed by treatment group, subject and visit/sampling time point. Graphical methods will be

employed to show the mean concentration-time plot and the individual concentration-time profiles by actual treatment group, with time defined as visit and actual day respectively.

### 4.11 Immunogenicity Data

Immunogenicity data analysis will be described in a separate analysis plan.

or extension of

- geographical region (Europe, North America),
- actual prior biological use (prior biological use, no prior biological use),
- actual weight category ( $\leq 90 \text{ kg}$ , > 90 kg),
- actual prior biological use and weight category stratum derived from the observed values of body weight and prior biologic use at baseline,
- gender (female, male), •
- gender (female, male),
  geriatric status (< 65, ≥ 65),</li>
  PASI and/or IGA at baseline (< median of baseline PASI score, ≥ median of baseline</li> PASI and/of IGA at baseline (< median of baseline FASI score, ≥ median of baseline PASI score, ≥ median of baseline PASI score of 4).</li>
   4.12.1 Variables
   As feasible, subgroup analysis may be performed for the following efficacy variables in the performed for the

ITT population and for the safety variables in the safety population:

		Endpoints	Type of Variables	Variables for Subgroup Analyses
		IGA- derived endpoints	Binary	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects achieving an IGA score ≤ 1 and with an IGA reduction from baseline of 2 points or more at Weeks 12, 24, 36 and 48.</li> </ul>
	Efficacy	PASI- derived	Categorical	<ul> <li>proportion of subjects achieving PASI 75/PASI 90/PASI 100 at Weeks 12, 24, 36 and 48.</li> </ul>
600		endpoints	Continuous	• percent change from baseline in PASI score at Weeks 12, 24, 36 and 48.
	Safety	Safety endpoint	Categorical	<ul> <li>number and percentage of subjects with AESI</li> </ul>

Table 4.16: List of Efficacy Endpoints for Subgroup Analyses and Variables

1/1/1º

In the next paragraphs, the analysis of the variables will be handled according to the type of variables or type of endpoint.

### **Descriptive and Inferential Analyses** 4.12.2

### 4.12.2.1 **Binary and Categorical Variables**

The number and proportion of responders will be reported by treatment group and visit for

At each visit, proportions will be compared between treatment group using a logistic Application regression. The model will include the treatment and subgroup as categories as well as the treatment-by-subgroup interaction. The treatment by subgroup interaction. the 15% significance level. A forest plot will be produced for each endpoint and treatment comparison of interest. The following comparisons will be reported: pairwise comparison of each treatment arm to Plac/120mg (x4), Q4 at Weeks 12, 24, 36 and 48.

The forest plots will show the predicted proportions in each treatment group estimated from the models for each subgroup category and overall. Treatment comparisons will also be reported on the plots. Owing to the low sample size in the subgroups, some analyses may not be feasible. Further, no p-values will be produced, but the 95% confidence intervals on mean treatment ORs will be presented, if possible. 0

The calculated ORs in the forest plot for each stratum of the subgroup of combined prior biological use and weight category will also serve as the sensitivity analyses for the CMH tests of secondary efficacy analyses in case that the assumption of OR homogeneity was not met.

### 4.12.2.2

Continuous Variables DA uthoitailor t comparison vs. pla Each treatment comparison vs. placebo will be assessed using an ANCOVA with treatment, subgroup, the subgroup-by-treatment interaction as factors and the baseline value as a covariate in the model. Significance of the interaction will be tested at the 15% level. The LSM differences along with 95% CI for each pairwise comparison vs. placebo will be calculated at Week 12 in each category of the subgroup. This inferential analysis will be repeated for Weeks 24, 36 and 48.

The subgroup analysis of actual prior biological use and weight stratum will be used as sensitivity analyses of the secondary endpoints in case of some imbalance between the treatment groups that is solely due to chance, particularly if the imbalance is such that any M1095 groups may have a better prognosis than the control group. This will assess the robustness of the conclusions drawn from the secondary analyses based on the ANCOVA analysis. Additional analyses may be performed to adjust for other baseline covariates if deemed necessary.

A forest plot displaying the LSM differences and the 95% CI in each category of subgroups will be produced for each pairwise treatment comparison. The p-value of the treatment-bysubgroup interaction will also be displayed and tested at the 15% level.

### 4.12.2.3 Safety Variables

The sound where the service of the sound of The number and percentage of subjects with AESI will be summarized by treatment group

### Sample Size Calculation 5

A sufficient number of subjects will be screened, so that a total of approximately 300 subjects will be randomized (approximately 50 per treatment group).

With this sample size, the study has >99% power to detect a statistically significant difference between any treatment arm and placebo in the IGA score of 0 or 1 rate at Week 12, with a two-sided, unadjusted type I error of 0.05. These calculations assume IGA score of 0 or 1 rates of > 88% for study drug and  $\le 7\%$  for placebo. As this is a phase 2 study, there will be no adjustments for multiplicity.

Exploratory analyses between the different dose levels of M1095 will also be performed. The PASI 100 response rate offers more discriminatory potential for this. Phase 1 data and response simulations give a PASI 100 response rate at Week 12 varying from 45 to 72%. With the sample size of 50 subjects per group, based on these assumed PASL 100 response rates at Week 12, the comparison between the highest and lowest M1095 doses has approximately 79% power.

Power calculations have been performed with SAS v.9.4 Proc Power using the methodology SUN for a two-group chi square test of equal proportions.

. Pr . gic use (y perparting contraction of the second and not a second a second and not a second a s Randomization will be stratified by prior biologic use (yes, no) and weight ( $\leq 90$  kg, > 90 kg)

### 6 Reference List

Abraha, Iosief & Montedori, Alessandro. (2010). Modified intention to treat reporting in randomised controlled trials: Systematic review. BMJ (Clinical research ed.). 340. c2697. 10.1136/bmj.c2697.

Basra, M.K.A., Salek, M.S., Camilleri, L., Sturkey, R. and Finlay, A.Y., 2015. Determining the minimal clinically important difference and responsiveness of the Dermatology Life Quality Index (DLQI): further data. *Dermatology*, *230*(1), pp.27-33.

Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Use, 2017. Guideline on immunogenicity assessment of therapeutic proteins. London: European Medicines Agency.

Committee for Proprietary Medicinal Products (CPMP), Points to Consider on Adjustment for Baseline Covariates (2003). *Stat Med*, 23(5), pp.701-709.

Demirtas, H., Freels, S.A. and Yucel, R.M., 2008. Plausibility of multivariate normality assumption when multiply imputing non-Gaussian continuous outcomes: a simulation assessment. *Journal of Statistical Computation and Simulation*, 78(1), pp.69-84.

Enders, C.K., 2010. Applied missing data analysis. Guilford press.

Finlay, A.Y. and Khan, G.K., 1994. Dermatology Life Quality Index (DLQI)—a simple practical measure for routine clinical use. *Clinical and experimental dermatology*, 19(3), pp.210-216.

Gassmann-Mayer C, Jiang K, McSorley P, Arani R, DuBrava S, Suryawanshi S, Webb DM, Nilsson M. Clinical and Statistical Assessment of Suicidal Ideation and Behavior in Pharmaceutical Trials. *Clin Pharmacol Ther* 2011; 90(4): 554-560.

Horton, N.J., Lipsitz, S.R. and Parzen, M., 2003. A potential for bias when rounding in multiple imputation. The American Statistician, 57(4), pp.229-232.

Kroenke, K., Strine, T.W., Spitzer, R.L., Williams, J.B., Berry, J.T. and Mokdad, A.H., 2009. The PHQ-8 as a measure of current depression in the general population. *Journal of affective disorders*, *114*(1-3), pp.163–173.

Liublinska, V. and Rubin, D.B., 2014. Sensitivity analysis for a partially missing binary outcome in a two-arm randomized clinical trial. *Statistics in medicine*, *33*(24), pp.4170-4185.

Mundt, J.C., Greist, J.H., Gelenberg, A.J., Katzelnick, D.J., Jefferson, J.W. and Modell, J.G., 2010. Feasibility and validation of a computer-automated Columbia-Suicide Severity Rating Scale using interactive voice response technology. *Journal of psychiatric research*, 44(16), pp.1224-1228.

Nilsson, M., Suryawanshi, S., Gassmann-Mayer, C., Dubrava, S., McSorley, P. and Jiang, K. (2013). *Columbia–Suicide Severity Rating Scale Scoring and Data Analysis Guide (Version 2)*. [online] Cssrs.columbia.edu. Available at: http://cssrs.columbia.edu/wp-content/uploads/ScoringandDataAnalysisGuide-for-Clinical-Trials-1.pdf [Accessed 17 Jul. 2018].

Pocock, S.J., Clayton, T.C. and Altman, D.G., 2002. Survival plots of time-to-event outcomes in clinical trials: good practice and pitfalls. The Lancet, 359(9318), pp.1686-1689.

Ratitch, B., Lipkovich, I. and O'Kelly, M., 2013. Combining analysis results from multiply

, R): Quality parts of the second of the sec

### 7 Appendices

### 7.1 Appendix A: Scoring of DLQI

The Dermatology Life Quality Index (DLQI) includes 10 items related to general dermatology disability to assess health-related quality of life in adults with skin disease. It includes several domains of daily activities, leisure, personal relationships, symptoms and feelings, treatment, and work/school (Finlay & Khan, 1994).



There will be no missing items since this questionnaire is handled using an electronic tablet device.

The minimal clinically important difference of the DLQI is determined as a change in DLQI score of at least 4 points (Basra et al, 2015).

### 7.2 Appendix B: Derivation of EQ-PSO

EQ-PSO, based on EQ-5D-3L, is a generic instrument to assess the health status of subjects suffering from psoriasis. This instrument comprises 7 dimensions: mobility, self-care, usual activities, pain/discomfort, anxiety/depression, skin irritation and self-confidence, the last two nsion of such application being the two psoriasis-specific dimensions. For each dimension, there will be 3 response levels: no problems, some problems and severe problems coded as follows:

•	Level 1 or "no problems":	coded as 1
•	Level 2 or "some problems":	coded as 2

• Level 3 or "severe problems": coded as 3.

The EQ-PSO (VAS) based on vertical VAS is a score ranging from 0 to 100 (in mm), with 0 being the worst imaginable health state and 100 the best imaginable health state. An improvement in EQ-PSO will be described by a positive change from baseline since a higher

Page 71 of 77

### 7.3 Appendix C: Scoring of SF-36 (Version 2 Standard)

The SF-36v2® Health Survey Scoring Software (Optum® PRO CoRE Software Version 1.2) will be employed to calculate the SF-36v2® 8-domain scales and 2-component summary measures (Ware et al., 2011). The SF-36, a 36-item questionnaire completed by the subject, is designed to describe and monitor the health of subjects in terms of health domain scales:

In addition, the Physical and Mental Component Summary (PCS and MCS) scores that aggregate all health domain scales will respectively give an assessment of the physical and mental wellbeing of subjects. Each domain scale and summary score will be directly transformed into a 0-100 scale before being standardized, with lower scores indicating more disability and higher scores less disability. In this study, the scoring will be based on the SF-36v2 standard version that has a 4-week recall period.

The process for scoring SF-36v2 health domain scales and component summary measures with the help of the scoring software is described below (Ware et al., 2011):










## 7.4 Appendix D: Scoring of PHQ-8

The PHQ-8 is an eight-item version of the Patient Health Questionnaire depression scale designed to clinically assess subjects for symptoms and signs of depression (Kroenke et al., 2009).

2009).		
No missing items within a questionnaire are expusing an electronic tablet device.	bected since this questionnaire is handled	
Each item will have 4 possible responses:	N 3PQ	
• Not at all:	scored as 0	
• Several days:	scored as 1	
• More than half the days:	scored as 2	
• Nearly every day:	scored as 3.	
The total PHQ-8 score will be obtained by summing the scores of all & items resulting in a total score between 0 and 24 points. Missing questionnaire at a scheduled visit will not be imputed. Higher the PHQ-8 score, more severe the depression is. Therefore, an improvement in PHQ-8 will be expressed by a negative change from baseline.		

, aire pression .com baseline .com baseline REDACTED COM application RE

## 7.5 Appendix E: Derivation of eC-SSRS

The eC-SSRS is a standardized and validated instrument developed for the assessment of the severity and frequency of suicidal ideation and behavior (Mundt et al., 2010).

Each standardized clinical question below has a binary response (yes/no) and is classified into categories re-ordered from the original eC-SSRS scale:

into categories re-ordered from	he original eC-SSRS scale:	ilor
Suicidal Ideation:		plicat
		uch at .
		t So
. =		, SIO
		or or
Suicidal Behavior:		ation
	10	
	or all	
	J cation	
	COP 3PPILE	

The eC-SSRS defines 5 subtypes of spicidal ideation and behavior in addition to selfinjurious behavior with no suicidal intent. The following variables (Nilsson et al., 2013) based on the above categories will be derived:

- Suicidal ideation: a "yes" response at any time to any of the 5 suicidal ideation • questions (Categories from (7-5) during the considered visit/period,
- Suicidal behavior: a "yes" response at any time to any of the 5 suicidal behavior questions (Categories 6-10) during the considered visit/period,
- Suicidal ideation or behavior: a "yes" response at any time during treatment to any of the 10 suicidal ideation questions (Categories 1-10) during the considered visit/period,
- Suicidal ideation score that is the maximal suicidal ideation category (Categories 1-5) reported by subjects at the assessment. If no suicidal ideation is present at the assessment, a score of 0 will be assigned.

Missing C-SSRS data will not be imputed.

Treatment-emergent suicidal ideation will be defined as an increase in the maximal suicidal deation score after the first dose of study drug and during treatment compared to the maximal suicidal ideation score observed prior to treatment. "Lifetime" scores from the Baseline eC-SSRS scale and any "Since Last Visit" scores from the Since Last Visit C-SSRS scales will be considered to determine the maximal suicidal ideation score prior to treatment. Emergence of suicidal behavior (Categories 6-10) will be defined as the on-treatment

occurrence of suicidal behavior from not having suicidal behavior prior to treatment.